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foreword of the president
of the company

DIRECT COOPERATION WITH 
LEADING AEROSPACE 
MANUFACTURERS IS KEY 
PRESUMPTION OF OUR SUCCESS

In 2009, Aero faced adverse situations 
in the aerospace market. Virtually all areas 
of civil aviation program have been affected
by significant reductions in demand, but Aero
has succeeded to respond to this negative
swing accordingly. Relatively significant cost
reductions were done, which unfortunately

affected also the employees by reducing their number by 10 %. Thanks
to successful start-up of activities in the field of "lean management" 
it was possible to maintain profitability at a decent level and also 
to lay the foundation of long-term maintenance of competitiveness. 

In 2009, Aero also started its way of "risk-sharing" programs by entering
into a contract in June and starting with the project for development 
and subsequent production of the CSeries aircraft leading edge for 
the Canadian company Bombardier. Another important milestone 
was the decision made in September to move Technometra Radotín, 
a subsidiary of Aero, to the premises of AERO Vodochody, 
which is scheduled to be completed in the middle of the year 2010. 
In October, serial deliveries of pylons for Gripens for Swedish SAAB
successfully commenced, exactly 12 months after concluding the contract.
At the end of the year, Aero successfully linked within the frame 
of the military program to previous successful cooperation in North Africa.

Aero as the largest aerospace company in the Czech Republic will 
continue to be a significant integrator of the Czech aerospace industry,
which extends beyond the borders of the Czech Republic. Participation
in major international projects with broad involvement of Czech 
companies is the direction that Aero wants to further promote 
and close cooperation with major original global manufacturers 
of aerospace technology are essential for future success. 

Ladislav Šimek
President and Chairman of the Board of Directors 
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COMPLETE 
S-76 HELICOPTER

AERO PRODUCES THE COMPLETE S-76 HELICOPTER READY FOR DYNAMIC PARTS INSTALLATION

THE S-76 HELICOPTER IS CIVIL 
LOWER MIDDLE-CLASS HELICOPTER
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AERO Vodochody a.s. (further referred to as Aero),
based in Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374,
250 70 Czech Republic, is a joint-stock company
registered in the Companies Register maintained
by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, File 449
on January 2, 1991, Company Identification Number:
00010545, VAT Identification Number: CZ00010545.

Until the end of the year 2006, almost 100% of the shares
of Aero were owned by the Czech Consolidation
Agency. On January 4, 2007, Penta group became
the sole shareholder of Aero. In the same year,
Penta successfully finished the restructuring project,
which resulted in a profit of Aero in the amount
of CZK 236 million shown for the year 2007. In 2008,
Aero showed the profit in the amount of CZK 402 million,
and in 2009, in the amount of CZK 279 million.

The basic capital of Aero amounts to CZK 1,884
million, and it is fully paid. In 2009, accumulated
losses from previous years were paid in the total
amount of CZK 4,081 million against the 
decrease of the basic capital and the issue 
of shares in the amount of CZK 950 million.

Aero is the largest aerospace manufacturer in
the Czech Republic. It deals with development,
production, sales and service support of military
and civil aerospace technology. Aero focuses mainly
on cooperation with world’s leading aerospace
manufacturers in international aerostructures
projects. The Military Program of Aero is a long-term
partner to several air forces, particularly the Czech
Air Force. Aero has implemented a certified
quality management system in accordance with
AS 9100 / ISO 9001 and it is a holder of all relevant
certificates both for the company and for the
individual production processes in accordance
with national and international standards. 

AEROSTRUCTURES DIVISION
The Aerostructures Program of Aero focuses on comprehensive 
deliveries of aerospace technology with a high degree of product 
finalization, including systems integration and testing, full control 
of quality, supply chain management and end-to-end customer support
starting from the production transfer phase, through the implementation
of customer's requirements during the production phase to after-sales
support. The Program is involved in the entire life cycle of commercial
and military projects, and it combines the company’s extensive 
experience in aerospace production dating back to 1919 with the 
everyday practice in running serial production, using the latest technology
and test methods. Aero is continuously expanding its portfolio of customers
from among the world’s leading aerospace manufacturers. 

In 2009, Aero signed the first risk-sharing contract in its history with 
the Belgium company SONACA for development and production of fixed
leading edge for the new project of C-Series regional transportation
aircraft of the Canadian company Bombardier. This contract means 
a significant step in fulfilment of Aero strategy of involvement into 
the work of international teams in development and certification 
of aircraft using the latest technologies and processes. 

The Aerostructures program further continues with the production 
of the complete S-76C++ helicopter without dynamic parts for the U.S.
customer – Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation. In 2009, after delivery of three
prototypes, serial production of a new significantly upgraded type of the S-76,
version D helicopter commenced in Aero. In October 2009, exactly 
one year after the contract signature, Aero commenced the deliveries 
of pylons for the JAS-39 Gripen aircraft for Swedish company Saab. 

Further continuing is the production of C-27J Spartan centre wing box
for the Italian customer Alenia Aeronautica, production of the Embraer
170/190 door subassemblies for the French company Latecoere, 
deliveries of F/A-18E/F/G gun bay door for the U.S. Boeing Company,
B767 fixed leading edge parts and assembly kits for British company
Spirit AeroSystems, and sub-assemblies and parts for Airbus
A320/A340 for the European concern EADS. 

PORTFOLIO OF COMPANIES
Aero is a 100% shareholder of Technometra Rado-
tín, a.s., a traditional manufacturer of landing gears
and other aerostructures, and of Letiště Vodochody a.s.
(Vodochody Airport), a private international airport
with outer boundary. The project of transfer of pro-
duction capacities from the location in Radotín to
the main production facilities in Vodochody is currently
in progress. The objective of this project is to increase
synergies in production and administrative and to
reach higher profitability within the Aero group. The
project will be successfully completed in 07/2010. 

Since 2009, also the Rotortech Aero Composites
Ltd. located in Cambridge, U.K. is the part of the
Aero group. This manufacturer of composite parts
is a strategic partner to Aero Vodochody especially
with respect to development of composite facilities
in Vodochody. In 2009, Aero founded a new company
Clarex Investments in Slovakia with the objective
to ensure overhauls of the DV2 engines for the L59
aircraft in Tunisia. Extension of portfolio of production
and service capabilities of the Aero group is thus
supporting both the current customers of the L59
aircraft and the future potential of development
of AERO Vodochody in the field of military MRO. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 
The strategic objective of Aero is to be the preferred
partner in the first-class projects of leading aerospace
manufacturers, to participate in risk-sharing projects,
and to offer flexible services and advanced products
in the global aerospace and defence industry. Aero was
very successful in fulfilment of its strategic objectives
in 2009. Signature of contracts within the Bombardier
CSeries and SAAB programs, and successful nego-
tiations on the Blackhawk program (contract signed
in January 2010) represent significant steps towards
fulfilment of the company's strategic objectives.
Further development of cooperation with the current
and new leading aerospace manufacturers remains
the key task for the entire company for 2010 
and for the years to come. Possible tool for further
development are also the acquisition projects. 

In the Czech Republic, besides further develop-
ment of cooperation with the Army of the Czech
Republic, Aero will endeavour to more extensively
involve other Czech aerospace industry companies
in successful supra-national aerospace programs. 

TO OUR CUSTOMERS 
WE ALWAYS PROVIDE HIGHEST
QUALITY AND PERFORMANCE

DEFENCE & MRO DIVISION
AERO Vodochody Defence & MRO (Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul) Strategic 
Business Unit is focused on both development and support of our final products 
(L-39, L-59, L-159 aircraft) and on a wide range of repair, upgrade, modification 
and test services. 

The main areas of activity in 2009 were support and further development 
of the L-159 Combat and Training System.The activities covered production 
of two L-159T jet training aircraft for the Czech Air Force (CzAF) scheduled 
for delivery in 2010 and support of the CzAF L-159 operational fleet. L-159 related
activities also included development of L-159 communication and identification 
upgrade. In the late 2009, Aero and Czech Ministry of Defence signed contract 
for PP-2000 heavy maintenance and upgrade of the L-159 aircraft.

L-159 system, which includes integrated logistic support, ground based training
system, mission planning and debriefing system and other equipment, has been
successfully operated by the Czech Air Force. Single-seat L-159 light combat 
aircraft were introduced into the CzAF service in 2001 followed by the two-seat 
L-159T in 2007. L-159 aircraft are used for a variety of missions ranging from 
the advanced and lead-in fighter training, through air-to-ground missions up 
to the tactical reconnaissance and air defence. L-159s regularly participate 
in the international NATO military exercises such as Tactical Leadership 
Programme, NATO Air Meet, Clean Hunter or Flying Rhino.

Concerning L-39 and L-59 aircraft, Aero continued to support their customers. 
To L-39/L-59 users Defence & MRO Strategic Business Unit offers a wide 
variety of services such as service life extension, overhaul and/or complex 
aircraft systems upgrades. Besides services related to its own products,
Defence & MRO Strategic Business Unit also offers modification and upgrade 
services for other aircraft platforms. 

Defence & MRO Strategic Business Unit possess capabilities in areas of aircraft 
design, logistic support and flight testing. In addition, it operates facilities, 
tooling and test equipment required for aircraft production and maintenance.
Through its subsidiary Clarex, it provides support and maintenance 
of DV-2 engine. Defence & MRO Strategic Business Unit is a holder of DOA 
Part-21/23/25, POA Part-21, EASA Part-145 MRO and EASA Part-147 Civil Aircraft
Training approvals and certificates. 
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EARLY DAYS
Aero was established on February 25, 1919,
with a seat in the Old Town of Prague 
and production facilities in Prague-Bubenec.
In 2009, Aero celebrates the 90th 
anniversary thus ranking among the oldest
manufacturers of aerospace technologies 
in the world. Since its foundation, Aero 
focused on development and production 
of aircraft, aerostructures and aircraft 
repairs, and already in 1919, it performed 
the first maiden flight of its first indigenous
type – the Aero A-1 aircraft. An order from
the Ministry of Defence soon followed 
for serial production of this test-proven type
designed for training of military pilots – 
a product typical of much more distant future! 

EXPANSION
More powerful training aircraft types followed, and after transfer 
of production to new facilities in Prague-Vysocany (1923), a new family
of reconnaissance, bomber and training biplanes was born: Aero A-11
and A-12. Military pilots soon became famous for breaking records and
winning races in airplanes bearing the Aero brand. Aero – a private 
enterprise owned by Dr. Vladimir Kabeš at that time – became the main
contractor for the Ministry of Defence and the Ministry of Public Works
(commercial aviation).

The first foreign customers followed soon, starting with Finland. 
Between the two world wars, Aero achieved a number of Czechoslovak
firsts: it built a prototype of the first domestic fighter airplane, designed
the first dedicated cabin transport aircraft, the first twin-engine aircraft,
the first seaplane with indigenously designed floats, it introduced 
a braced high-wing monoplane and it also pioneered a practical design
of a wooden cantilever wing structure. 

WAR PRODUCTION
The enhanced capabilities of the company were fully utilized and later
developed during the German occupation when Aero produced stressed-skin
semi-monocoque structures with full jigging for reconnaissance 
and training missions – Focke-Wulf Fw 189 and Siebel Si 204. Immediately
after the end of the war, the nationalized Aero continued in production
and repairs of aircraft. Modified German aircraft types were manufactured
for the Czechoslovak Air Force as well as for commercial aviation. Shortly
after the war, a new groundbreaking indigenous type was introduced –
the high-performance, twin-engine, all-metal, four-seat Aero 45. 

JET ERA
In 1953, new facilities designed entirely 
for jet aircraft production were built 
in Vodochody and they were put into 
operation in the same year. The production, 
in which several Czechoslovak aerospace
plants were involved, focused on a large-
scale series license production of the Soviet
MiG-15 aircraft and its derivatives. 
The supersonic MiG-19 and MiG-21 
aircraft were manufactured in Aero through
the 1960's and 1970's, paving the way 
in production capabilities for indigenous 
jet trainer programs – the L-29 Delfin 
and the L-39 Albatros. 

INDIGENOUS JET TRAINERS
In the second half of the 1950's, the need for jet trainer aircraft became more 
and more urgent. Concentrated efforts on developing an optimised airframe 
and indigenous jet engine resulted in the maiden flight of the L-29 aircraft in 1959.
The definitive step on the way of Aero to mass production of jet trainers took place 
in the summer of 1961 near Moscow: The L-29 Delfin won comparative tests of three
different prototypes and was declared the most suitable trainer for the countries 
of the entire Eastern Bloc. Production and deliveries continued smoothly 
for the following ten years, during which the second generation of a more 
powerful and more efficient L-39 aircraft was developed. Production of the 
L-39 occupied workshops and assembly halls of Aero during 1970's and 1980's. 
A number of air forces around the world still benefit from the excellent training 
quality of this affordable aircraft.

The L-39 Albatros family considerably expanded through the time, forming 
a perfect basis for further development. The advent of 1990's brought 
incorporation of western avionics and standards as well as the use of a more 
powerful American engine and global equipment, which started a new chapter 
in the life of the company. The L-159 aircraft was developed.

E HAVILLAND DH-50, CIVIL AIRLINER UNDER BRITISH LICENCE

IN 2009 AERO CELEBRATED 
90 YEARS SINCE ITS FOUNDATION
AND THUS RANKED AMONG 
THE OLDEST AEROSPACE 
MANUFACTURERS IN THE WORLD
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12 13aero in data
1919
Aero founded in Prague 

A-1, first indigenous 

military training aircraft 

1921
A-10, first indigenous

civil aircraft 

1923
A-11, family of 

successful military 

biplanes (bomber 

and reconnaissance) 

1925
De Havilland DH-50

airliner produced 

under British license 

1929
A-34 "Blackbird", 

first of sport 

and training light 

biplanes family 

1932
A-100, family of successful

military biplanes (bomber

and reconnaissance)

1937
MB-200 all-metal bomber

produced under French 

license (Marcel Bloch) 

1938 1939
C4/C-104 (Bucker Bu-131

Jungmann) training 

and aerobatic biplane 

1943
C-3 (Siebel Si-204D) 

twin-engine military 

aircraft  

1947
Ae-45 twin-engine civil

aircraft 

1953
Aero moved from 

Prague to new facilities

in Vodochody 

1954
Maiden flight of first

MiG-15 jet fighter built

under Soviet license

(3,405 aircraft units 

delivered in 1954-1962) 

1958
1958 Maiden flight of

MiG-19 supersonic 

fighter built by Aero

under Soviet license

(103 aircraft units 

delivered in 1958-1962) 

1959
Maiden flight of L-29

Delfín, first in-house

designed jet trainer

(3,500 aircraft units 

delivered in 1963-1974) 

1962
Maiden flight of MiG-21

supersonic fighter built by

Aero under Soviet license

(194 aircraft units delivered

in 1962-1972) 

1968
Maiden flight of L-39

Albatros jet trainer of Aero

design (more than 2,900

aircraft units delivered in

1971-1999) 

1986
1986 Maiden flight of 

L-39MS jet trainer, for 

export designated as L-59

Super Albatros (60 aircraft

units delivered in 1992-1996)

1997
Maiden flight of L-159

ALCA – Advanced Light

Combat Aircraft 

(72 aircraft units 

delivered to Czech Air Force) 

Joint venture with Taiwan

company AIDC established

for development and pro-

duction of Ae 270 aircraft

1998
Entry of Boeing to Aero

(Boeing owned 35% 

of shares) 

2000
Delivery of first L-159

aircraft unit to Czech Air

Force 

Production of Boeing

757 polished passenger

door skins launched  

Maiden flight of first pro-

totype of Ae 270 aircraft

Production of S-76

helicopter for Sikorsky

Aircraft Corporation

launched

2001 2002
Maiden flight of L-159B

advanced trainer 

2004 2005
Ae 270 aircraft obtained

EASA type certificate 

Government of Czech

Republic announced

privatisation of Aero 

Aero signed long-term

agreement on Czech 

Air Force L-39/L-159

follow-on support

2006
Ae 270 aircraft obtained

FAA type certificate

2007
Penta private equity 

group becomes the sole

shareholder of Aero 

L-159T1 advanced trainers

delivered to Czech Air Force

Joint venture with AIDC 

terminated

Penta acquired British

company Rotortech Com-

posites Ltd.

Production of C-27J

Spartan centre wing box for

Alenia Aeronautica launched

2008 2009
Aero Vodochody Airport, a.s.

detached as a separate

company

First contract on international

risk-sharing project with

Belgium company SONACA 

2010
Delivery of L-159

aircraft units to Czech

Air Force completed

Departure of Boeing

from Aero

Production of F-18

Super Hornet gun bay

door for Boeing St.

Louis launched

Production of Boeing 767

parts and assembly 

kits for BAE SYSTEMS 

(currently Spirit 

AeroSystems) launched

Production of Embraer

170/190 door subassemblies

for Latecoere launched

Contract on JAS-39 Gripen

pylons production signed

with Saab

A-304 twin-engine low

wing military aircraft

A-300 twin-engine low

wing bomber



F/A-18
GUN BAY DOOR

PROGRAM F/A-18 INCLUDES PARTS PRODUCTION, SURFACE PROTECTION 
AND FINAL DOOR ASSEMBLE READY FOR INSTALLATION ON THE AIRCRAFT

F/A-18 SUPER HORNET
IS MULTIPURPOSE  COMBAT AIRCRAFT
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AERO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DESIGN, DEVELOPMENT 
AND PRODUCTION OF THE WING FIXED LEADING EDGE

17

Aero went 
on in privatisation 
of Polish company 
PZL Swidnik. 

Aero celebrated 
90 years since
its foundation.

Aero delivered 
already the 10th
centre-wing 
of the C-27J Spartan
aircraft.

Aero acquired 
Slovak company 
Clarex 
Investments Ltd.

Aero signed 
the first contract 
for an international
risk-sharing 
project with Belgium
company SONACA.

Technometra 
signed a new 
contract with 
Messier Dowty 
for deliveries 
for Airbus A320. 

Aero does not 
acquire 
PZL Swidnik.

Aero acquired 
British company 
Rotortech 
Composites Ltd.

Issue of shares 
in the amount 
of CZK 950 million.

18.02.
EIA continuation 
enabled 
for Vodochody 
Airport.

23.02. 25.02. 21.04. 03.06.

13.11.14.09.14.08.

Transfer 
of machines, 
equipment, 
and parts 
of production 
from Technometra 
Radotín a.s. 

31.12.

18.06.16.06.

Signature 
of PP2000.

Settlement 
of accumulated 
losses of previous
years in the 
amount 
of CZK 4,080 million. 

22.12.17.12.
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company bodies
and management

COMPANY BODIES AND MANAGEMENT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2009:
Chairman: 
Zdeněk Sýkora
Members: 
Petr Brychta
Ondřej Benáček

TOP MANAGEMENT AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2009: 
Ladislav Šimek, MBA, President
Petr Kudrna, Vice President Military Programs 
Monika Vajnerová, Vice President Aerostructures 
Michal Flídr, Vice President Finance 
Josef Kadlec, Vice President Operations 
Jiří Sauer, Vice President Procurement 
Zdeněk Mlejnek, Quality Director 
Jiří Fiala, Engineering Director 
Vladimíra Šeböková, Vice President HR 

SUPERVISORY BOARD AS
AT DECEMBER 31, 2009:
Chairman: 
Václav Štajner
Members: 
Jan Borýsek
Martin Prachař

PRESIDENT
Ladislav Šimek

SECRETARY

STRATEGIC
PROJECTS
Petr Řehoř

Director

SECURITY
Jan Svoboda

MILITARY PROGRAM
Petr Kudrna

VP

AEROSTRUCTURES
PROGRAM

Monika Vajnerová
VP

CUSTOMER
SUPPORT
Pavel Ivan

S-76 PROGRAM 
Michal Krofta

ALENIA PROGRAM 
Luděk Vítězník

BOEING, SPIRIT, EADS,
SONACA PROGRAMS

Zdeněk Hlačík

SAAB PROGRAM 
Jan Matějka

PROJECTS
MANAGEMENT

CONTRACTS

PILOTS

FINANCE
Michal Flídr

VP

CONTROLLING
Petr Plička

LEGAL DEPARTMENT
Radim Josef Marušák

HUMAN RESORCES
Vladimíra Šeböková

VP

OPERATIONS
Josef Kadlec

VP

PAYROLL
Miluška Blahnová

PERSONNEL 
ADMINISTRATION, 

REMUNERATION & EDUCATION

BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT & SALES

VP

MARKETING 
KONTRAKTY, PRODEJ
Josef Šonský, Director

FACILITY MANAGE-
MENT & UTILITIES

Richard Průcha

PROJECT AE 270

SALES
Zdeněk Metenko

SUPPLY CHAIN
Jiří Sauer

VP

STRATEGIC
PROCUREMENT

Jan Havelka

PROCUREMENT - MILITARY
AIRCRAFT PROGRAM

Petr Kalaš

PROCUREMENT
Branislav Takáč

PROCUREMENT - STRUCTURAL
PARTS & OUTSOURCING

Andrej Sládeček

PROCUREMENT
- AEROSTUCTURES

Lech Witala

LOGISTICS 
& STORES

Roman Nejedlý

STORES
Václava Lorencová

TRANSPORTATION
LOGISTICS

Jan Jehlička

CUSTOMS
Tomáš Fiala

INTAKE & IMPUT
CONTROL

TOOLS & TOOLING
STORAGE

Jana Uhrová

PRODUCTION
Vladimír Müller

Director

PRODUCTION
PLANNING
Milan Vokatý

PART FABRICATION
Pavel Aplt

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 110
Jan Pavlinský

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 120

Jaroslav Chroust

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 260
Petr Holeček

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 145

Vladimír Funda

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 931
Josef Beneš

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 932
Josef Uher

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 150

Stanislav Raška

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 247
Josef Kapalín

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 248

Vladimír Faltus

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 250
Ivo Martinák

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 153
Tomáš Zavadil

OPERATIONS
- PLANT 224

Jiří Mikeš

PRODUCTION
AEROSTRUCTURES PROGRAMS 

Martin Hampl

COMPOSITES
Pavel Kocour

TECHNICAL 
SERVICES

Martin Kronďák

ACCOUNTINT
Miloslav 

Kuch-Breburda

ENGINEERING
Jiří Fiala
Director

DESIGN
Miloš Trnobranský

DESIGN ANALYSIS
Pavel Kučera

LOGISTICS
Jaroslav Bulánek

CONCEPTUAL 
DESIGN

Petr Raška

AIRWORTHINESS I

TESTING
Petr Holásek

CIVIL AIRCRAFT
MAINTENANCE

Robert Blaha

COMPOSITES
Milan Klein

AIRCRAFT 
OPERATIONS
Petr Doubek

PRODUCTION 
ENGINEERING

Jiří Hubálek, Director

PRODUCTION ENG. DEVE-
LOPMENT & LEAN PRODUCTION

Petr Klíma

PRODUCTION 
ENGINEERING 

- PARTS

PRODUCTION 
ENGINEERING - ASSEMBLIES

Ladislav Král

PRODUCTION ENGINEERING 
- AEROSTRUCTURES

Radek Kovařík

TOOLING / JIGS 
MANUFACTURING

ENGINEERING
Josef Nejedlý

INF.COMMUNICATION
TECHNOLOGIES
Miloš Vodička

TECHNICAL MAINTENANCE, 
NETWORK OPERATION

Jiří Chrz

OPERATION SYSTEM
ADMINISTRATION

Pavel Pekárek

QUALITY CONTROL
Zdeněk Mlejnek

Director

ORGANIZATION
& MANAGEMENT
Zdeněk Hrnčíř

INTERNAL AUDIT
Peter Felix

TESTING
& LABORATION
Martin Krkavec

QUALITY CONTROL
/ PART FABRICATION

Tomáš Mach

QUALITY CONTROL
/ MILITARY AIRCRAFT

Martin Cerha

QUALITY CONTROL
/ CIVIL AIRCRAFT
Vlastimil Suchý

QUALITY CONTROL
/ AEROSTRUCTURES

Petr Mrázek

METROLOGY

31 December 2009
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ALENIA C-27J:
CENTRE WING BOX

COMPLETE CENTRE WING BOX READY FOR INSTALLATION ON THE AIRCRAFT C-27J SPARTAN 

C-27J SPARTAN IS TACTICAL 
MILITARY CARGO MIDDLE-CLASS AIRCRAFT
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report on business 
activities
In 2009, despite the recession in world 
markets, we reach a profit of CZK 279 million. 

GENERAL FINANCIAL SITUATION
In 2009, Aero reached a profit in the amount
of CZK 279 million despite the adverse 
situation in the world markets. Aero is thus
reaching a profit this being since successful
completion of restructuring in 2007, when 
the company was acquired by the Penta group.

In 2009, the accumulated losses from previous
years in the amount of CZK 4,080 million
were settled, shares in the amount of CZK
950 million issued, and a part of the loan for
Salori in the amount of CZK 350 million paid.

The profit of Aero in 2009 was significantly 
influenced by the production and sales 
of the Sikorsky helicopters and by performance
of contracts with the Ministry of Defence 
of the Czech Republic. The more 
and more intensive is the cooperation 
with other aerostructures programs. 
The first risk-sharing project SONACA 
was signed in 2009, where Aero participates
in development of leading edges.

IN 2009 AERO ACHIEVED 
PROFIT OF CZK 279 MILLIONS 
DESPITE OF WORLD 
MARKETS RECESION

It is possible to assume for the future 
a production of a new type of the Sikorsky 
helicopter, production of cockpit 
of the UH-60M Black Hawk helicopter, 
and production of leading edge for 
a new type of CS Series aircraft.

Defence & MRO division contributed to 
revenues in 19 %, mainly from performance
of contracts with the Ministry of Defence 
of the Czech Republic, aircraft storage, flight
hours in Hungary, and overhauls abroad.

The export reached the amount 
of CZK 2,434 million and it contributed 
to total revenue in 84 %. High share 
of export in the total revenue is caused
mainly by the high volume of aerostructures
in the total production. This comprises 
mainly the production of the S-76C 
helicopters for Sikorsky and deliveries 
of C-27J aircraft centre wing for Alenia 
Aeronautica. In case of the Defence & MRO
division, export part was represented 
mainly by sales of flight hours to Hungary
(revenues approximately CZK 50 million).

PROFIT
In 2009, Aero showed a profit of CZK 279.3 million made up of an operating profit 
of CZK 255.5 million, financial profit of CZK 16.5 million, and an extraordinary 
income of CZK 7.3 million.

In 2009, the operating profit exceeded the plan, this despite of negative 
development in the world markets and lower deliveries. Aero responded flexibly 
to the new situation and took steps leading to lower overhead costs trying 
to minimize impacts on regular employees.

The company management together with the trade unions tried to find the most 
feasible alternative, limitation of cooperation mainly with externs.

The decrease of deliveries compared with the plan was apparent especially 
in aerostructures with the highest impact to the amount of revenues in production 
of the S-76 C helicopters and in deliveries for the Latecore company. Deliveries 
of pylons for the JAS-39 Gripen aircraft for SAAB were moved to the year 2010. MRO
program reached a higher profit compared to the plan. Operating profit was positively
influenced mainly by the more extensive cooperation with the Army of the Czech 
Republic, cost savings, and higher than planned sales of flight hours to Hungary.
The result positively reflected also the exchange rates of CZK to USD and EUR.

In 2009, Aero realized a loss from hedging in the amount of CZK 55 million, 
when the loss resulted from exchange rate hedging in the first half of the year, 
and interest hedging in December 2009.

The income interest from loans exceeded the interest from credits by CZK 43 million.
Cost interests compared to previous years were influenced by the development 
of the interest rates in the world markets, when Aero uses financing by foreign 
capital with the interest comprising floating component as 3M USD Libor 
or the discount rate announced by the ČNB, while unused cash is provided into 
the Penta group for fix interest. Exchange rate profits realized from 
re-evaluation of credits were higher than losses by CZK 38.6 million.

The profit was also boosted by operating financing, where the credit 
line was drawn to the maximum limit of USD 60 million, based 
on a revolving loan agreement for export finance, and guarantees were
signed between Aero and Česká exportní banka a.s. The cooperation
was further supported by signing a framework agreement 
on assignment of future export receivables for consideration.

The equity as at December 31, 2009 amounted to CZK 3.04 billion 
(2008: CZK 1.8 billion; 2007: CZK 1.3 billion). 

REVENUES
The revenues of Aero reached CZK 2.9 billion. The total revenues 
were contributed to in 90 % by the revenue from sales of own goods 
and services, in 9 % by the revenue from sales of goods, and in 1 % 
by the revenue from sales of material and property. The revenues 
were contributed to in 81 % by the division of Aerostructures, 
especially the production and sales of Sikorsky S-76 civil helicopters 
(86 % of revenues of the Aerostructures division), this even though 
temporary decrease of the numbers of deliveries from customer's side
(due to their decision based on the economic situation in the world) 
in the middle of the year 2009. In 2009, Aero delivered to the Sikorsky
company 26 units of S-76C++ helicopters and 2 prototypes of the S-76D
version. Other aerostructures significantly contributing to revenues
were the Alenia C-27J program producing the entire centre wing 
part for the C-27J Spartan military transportation aircraft (9 % 
of the revenues of the Aerostructures division), further the F/A-18 – gun
bay door program for the Boeing company, sub-assemblies 
for the EADS concern, pylons for JAS-39 Gripen, and Embraer 170/190
aircraft door sub-assemblies for Latecoere.
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PROPERTY STRUCTURE 
In 2009, the total assets of Aero increased 
by 18% compared to 2008 to the total amount
of CZK 5,142 million.

Short-term assets increased compared 
to the year 2008 by 17% to CZK 3,735 million
(thus forming 73% of the total assets 
of the company). Short-term assets consist 
of inventory (CZK 1,573 million), 
short-term receivables (CZK 1,964 million),
and short-term financial assets 
(CZK 190 million).

Increase of material in the amount of 42%
was influenced mainly by the decision on
decrease of the number of deliveries 
of the S76-C helicopters from 
the customer]s side, where materials 
for certain components are purchased 
several months in advance.

Aero took measures to decrease the volume of new purchase orders 
to a necessary level, thus exerting long-term pressure to decrease 
the volume of inventory. Advances on inventory decreased by 69% 
to CZK 44 million. Significant increase was shown mainly in receivables
from the controlling entity to the amount of CZK 1,427 million 
(by 58% compared to 2007) when Aero advantageously provided 
borrowings to the group. Receivables from business relations 
decreased by 26.63% to CZK 464 million and conjectural accounts 
active by CZK 60 million to CZK 0.6 million. The short-term financial 
assets decreased by 15% to CZK 190 million.

The long-term assets increased by 35.3% to CZK 1,392 million 
and it forms 27% of assets of Aero. Significant increase of the long-term
assets was caused mainly by the increase of the share in controlled 
entities to CZK 526 million from the original CZK 112 million; 
this comprised acquisitions of the companies Clarex Investment, a.s.,
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited, and Letiště Vodochody, a.s., 
which was separated from the assets of Aero on January 15, 2009. 
Last but not least, the increase of the long-term assets was also 
influenced by the growth of the long-term intangibles in progress 
by CZK 92 million, which is formed mainly by the activation of own 
costs in the development of leading edges for the SONACA program 
and by acquisition of know how from Technometra valuated by an 
expert to CZK 25 million, and by the growth of the long-term tangibles 
in progress by CZK 71 million, which was caused by purchasing 
of machines and equipment from Technometra according to the 
contract signed on December 31, 2009. In case of lands and buildings,
the assets decreased by CZK 235 million, especially due to the sales 
of property to the newly originated company Letiště Vodochody, a.s. 
(as mentioned above).

OUR GOAL IS TO BECOME 
THE MOST SIGNIFICANT 
AEROSPACE MANUFACTURER 
IN THE CEE REGION

FINANCING RESOURCES
The share of shareholders' capital 
in the total assets of the company 
at the end of the year 2009 was 59%. 
The entities participating in the shareholders'
capital are TULAROSA a.s. (51%) 
and Salori Holding B.V. (49%). The mother
company is TULAROSA, which is a part 
of the consolidation unit of the group 
Penta Investments Limited. 

Shareholders' capital compared to the year 2008 increased by CZK 1,272 million
(72%) to CZK 3,037 million. The increase was influenced mainly by the issue 
of shares in the amount of CZK 950 million, by the positive profit (CZK 279 million),
and by lower valuation differences from re-valuation of the derivatives trades 
concluded. The legal reserve fund was increased in June 2009 according 
to the rules of the Czech accounting standards.

Foreign resources decreased by 19% to CZK 2,078 million. The obligations 
to the controlling entity decreased by 65%, when Aero settled a portion of the 
debt to the company Salori in the amount of CZK 350 million. Other reserves 
were dissolved by 26% to CZK 191 million, while the amount of the reserves was 
influenced by the exchange rate and by the number of orders, leading to modification
of reserves to securities, the decrease was also influenced by dissolving 
of the reserve against release of L.C. in the amount of CZK 24 million. 
On the contrary, there was an increase in trade payables by 26% to CZK 433 million.
Bank credits decreased by 3% to CZK 1,100 million. The decrease was influenced 
by the variation of the exchange rate. Indebtedness of the company is in the amount
of 40% of the total value of the company. (Accruals were CZK 26 million.) 

25
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HUMAN RESOURCES
In 2009, Aero focused on completion 
of the process of restructuring 
and stabilization of employees.

The average recalculated number 
of employees in 2009 was 1,186 and the total
number of employees to December 31, 2009
was 1,086. During this period, more than 
50 employees were recruited, mainly 
blue-collar positions on assurance 
and realization of existing and new 
production programs; 250 employees left.

The total staff turnover in 2009 reached 
2.12 %, which means a decrease by 0.08%
compared to 2008.

The average salary reached CZK 33,034,
which represents a year-to-year growth 
by almost 4%. In 2009, the company put 
great emphasis on training and education 
of employees, not only in the areas required
by law. The total training and education costs
in 2009 amounted to CZK 2,769,233, which 
represents over CZK 2,500 per employee. 

ENVIRONMENT
In 2009, Aero produced total of 14.7 tons of pollutants (of which 
4.2 tons of volatile organic substances, 8.5 tons of nitrogen oxides, 
and 0.7 tons of solid particles). The largest volume of emissions 
is attributed to the boiler plant, chemical plants and paint-shops.

In 2009, Aero paid CZK 18,139 on air protection fees. The measurements
of all light sources verified that the emissions limits were fulfilled also
in the year 2009. 

In 2009, Aero produced 1,086.3 tons of waste (of which 280.9 tons 
of dangerous waste).

In 2009, Aero consumed 111.4 thousand m3 of underground water 
(of which 95.3 thousand m3 for industrial technologies) and it produced
61.5 thousand m3 of sewerage water. Water usage fees reached 
the amount of CZK 318,158. The total fees for water discharge 
reached the amount of CZK 29,569 in the year 2009, of which 
the fees for discharging of pollutions represented the amount 
of CZK 24,836, and the fees for the water volumes discharged 
represented the amount of CZK 4,760. 

IN THE AREA OF ENVIRONMENT
AERO ABIDES WITH LAWS, 
EDUCATES ITS EMPLOYEES AND 
DESPACHES ALL KINDS OF WASTE

AERO TEAM AROUND C-27J  
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opinion 
of the supervisory board
According to the § 198 Commercial Code 
supervisory board has reviewed regular 2009
final accounts of AERO Vodochody a.s.

After regular final accounts discussion and
auditor standpoint identification supervisory
board recommended the submitted regular

2009 final accounts for regular company general meeting approval 
on its sitting on 17th June 2010.

Supervisory board has further commanded regular general meeting 
to approve the board of directors proposal on 2009 profit allocation 
of CZK 279,304 mil. as follows:
- CZK 13,965 mil. to the company reserve fund,
- The rest of CZK 265,339 mil. to transfer from the 431 Economy 

result in approval procedure account to the 428 Retained income 
from the past years.

In Odolena Voda 17th June 2010.

Vaclav Stajner
Chairman of the supervisory board

AERO PRODUCES 
COMPLETE

WIRE HARNESSES FOR
S-76 HELICOPTER

- THE TOTAL LENGHT 
IS 12 KM
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independent 
auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of AERO Vodochody a.s.:

I.We have audited the financial statements 
of AERO Vodochody a.s. (“the Company”)
as at 31 December 2009 presented 
in the annual report of the Company 
on pages 38-67 and our audit report dated 
9 April 2010 stated the following:

To the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s.:

We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of AERO Vodochody a.s., 
which comprise the balance sheet as 
at 31 December 2009, and the income 
statement and cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
notes. For details of AERO Vodochody a.s. 
see Note 1 to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management is responsible for 
the preparation and fair presentation 
of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted
in the Czech Republic. This responsibility 
includes designing, implementing 
and maintaining internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable 
in the circumstances.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and the
related implementation guidance issued by
the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic.
Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the information presented in
the annual report that describes the facts 
reflected in the financial statements is consistent,
in all material respect, with the financial 
statements. We have checked that the accounting
information presented in the annual report on
pages 1-29 is consistent with that contained
in the audited financial statements as 
at 31 December 2009. Our work as auditors was
confined to checking the annual report with
the aforementioned scope and did not include
a review of any information other than that
drawn from the audited accounting records 
of the Company. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Based on our audit, the accounting 
information presented in the annual report 
is consistent, in all material respects, with
the above-mentioned financial statements.

III. In addition, we have reviewed the accuracy
of the information contained in the report 
on related parties of AERO Vodochody a.s. for
the year ended 31 December 2009 presented 
in the annual report of the Company on pages
68-69. The management of AERO Vodochody
a.s. is responsible for the preparation of the
report on related parties. Our responsibility 
is to issue a report based on our review.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act
on Auditors and International Standards on Auditing as amended 
by implementation guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech
Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including an assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedu-
res that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of AERO Vodochody a.s. as 
at 31 December 2009, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the Czech Republic.

II. We have also audited the consistency of the annual report with 
the above-mentioned financial statements. The management of AERO 
Vodochody a.s. is responsible for the accuracy of the annual report. 
Our responsibility is to express, based on our audit, an opinion on the
consistency of the annual report with the financial statements.

We conducted our review in accordance with applicable International Standard 
on Review Engagements and the related implementation guidance issued by 
the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether 
the report on related parties is free from material misstatement. The review 
is limited primarily to enquiries of company personnel, to analytical procedures 
applied to financial data and to examining, on a test basis, the accuracy 
of information, and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not 
performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the report on related parties of AERO Vodochody a.s. for the year ended 
31 December 2009 is materially misstated.

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401
Represented by Partner

Magdalena Soucek
Auditor, License No. 1291

18 June 2010
Prague, Czech Republic
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auditor's report 
on financial statements 
To the Board of Directors 
of AERO Vodochody a.s.:

We have audited the accompanying 
financial statements of AERO Vodochody a.s.,
which comprise the balance sheet as 
at 31 December 2009, and the income 
statement and cash flow statement 
for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory notes. For details 
of AERO Vodochody a.s. see Note 1 
to the financial statements.

An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of AERO Vodochody a.s.
as at 31 December 2009, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted 
in the Czech Republic.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Czech Republic. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act
on Auditors and International Standards on Auditing as amended by 
implementation guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 

31 March 2010, Prague, Czech Republic

Ernst & Young Audit, s.r.o.
License No. 401
Represented by Partner

Magdalena Soucek
Auditor, License No. 1291
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CURRENT YEAR PRIOR YEAR
2008

GROSS ALLOWANCES NET NET

TOTAL ASSETS 8 398 438 (3 256 323) 5 142 115 4 370 007 
A. STOCK SUBSCRIPTION RECEIVABLE 0 0 0 0

B. FIXED ASSETS 3 295 163 (1 902 827) 1 392 336 1 028 769 

B. I. Intangible assets 331 047 (236 574) 94 473 6 718 
B. I. 1 Foundation and organization expenses 0 0 0 0

2 Research and development 0 0 0 0
3 Software 188 723 (186 619) 2 104 5 674 
4 Patents, royalties and similar rights 49 955 (49 955) 0  0
5 Goodwill 0 0 0 0
6 Other intangible assets 614 0 614 1 044 
7 Intangible assets in progress 91 755 0 91 755 0
8 Advances granted for intangible assets 0 0 0 0 

B. II. Tangible assets 2 436 569 (1 665 153) 771 416 909 831 
B. II. 1 Land 24 897 0 24 897 204 656 

2 Constructions 896 311 (472 478) 423 833 479 024 
3 Separate movable items and groups of movable items 1 405 316 (1 186 739) 218 577 201 490 
4 Perennial crops 0 0 0 0
5 Livestock 0 0 0 0 
6 Other tangible assets 5 875 (5 756) 119 119 
7 Tangible assets in progress 95 803 0 95 803 24 542 
8 Advances granted for tangible assets 8 367 (180) 8 187 0 
9 Gain or loss on revaluation of acquired property 0 0 0 0 

B. III. Financial investments 527 547 (1 100) 526 447 112 220 
B. III. 1 Subsidiaries 526 447 0 526 447 112 220 

2 Associates 1 100 (1 100) 0 0 
3 Other long-term securities and interests 0 0 0 0
4 Loans to subsidiaries and associates 0 0 0 0
5 Other long-term investments 0 0 0 0
6 Long-term investments in progress 0 0 0 0
7 Advances granted for long-term investments 0 0 0 0

CURRENT YEAR PRIOR YEAR
2008

GROSS ALLOWANCES NET NET

C. CURRENT ASSETS 5 088 216 (1 353 496) 3 734 720 3 182 118 

C. I. Inventory 2 918 183 (1 345 282) 1 572 901 1 333 938 
C. I. 1 Materials 2 144 642 (1 125 452) 1 019 190 716 475 

2 Work in progress and semi-finished production 714 399 (208 908) 505 491 456 650 
3 Finished products 0 0 0 0
4 Livestock 0 0 0 0
5 Goods 4 555 (766) 3 789 17 208 
6 Advances granted for inventory 54 587 (10 156) 44 431 143 605 

C. II. Long-term receivables 7 940 0 7 940 0 
C. II. 1 Trade receivables 0 0 0 0

2 Receivables from group companies with majority control 7 940 0 7 940 0 
3 Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50% 0 0 0 0 
4 Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association 0 0 0 0 
5 Long-term advances granted 0 0 0 0
6 Unbilled revenue 0 0 0 0 
7 Other receivables 0 0 0 0 
8 Deferred tax asset 0 0 0 0 

C. III. Short-term receivables 1 971 815 (8 214) 1 963 601 1 624 088 
C. III. 1 Trade receivables 472 289 (8 214) 464 075 632 482 

2 Receivables from group companies with majority control 1 427 260 0 1 427 260 905 263 
3 Receivables from group companies with control of 20% - 50% 0 0 0 0 
4 Receivables from partners, co-operative members and participants in association 0 0 0 0 
5 Social security and health insurance 0 0 0 0 
6 Due from government - tax receivables 36 592 0 36 592 20 792 
7 Short-term advances granted 33 372 0 33 372 2 940 
8 Unbilled revenue 605 0 605 60 837 
9 Other receivables 1 697 0 1 697 1 774 

C. IV. Short-term financial assets 190 278 0 190 278 224 092 
C. IV. 1 Cash 4 702 0 4 702 10 261 

2 Bank accounts 185 576 0 185 576 213 831 
3 Short-term securities and interests 0 0 0 0 
4 Short-term financial assets in progress 0 0 0 0 

D. OTHER ASSETS - TEMPORARY ACCOUNTS OF ASSETS 15 059 0 15 059 159 120 

D. I. Accrued assets and deferred liabilities 15 059 0 15 059 159 120 
D. I. 1 Prepaid expenses 13 717 0 13 717 13 162 

2 Prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) 0 0 0 0
3 Unbilled revenue 1 342 0 1 342 145 958 
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Current year Prior year
2008

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 5 142 115 4 370 007 
A. EQUITY 3 037 427 1 765 860 

A. I. Basic capital 1 883 589 5 014 089 
A. I. 1 Registered capital 1 883 589 5 014 089 

2 Own shares and own ownership interests (-) 0 0 
3 Changes in basic capital 0 0 

A. II. Capital funds 21 119 -21 641 
A II. 1 Share premium (agio) 0 0 

2 Other capital funds 28 720 28 720 
3 Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities -7 601 -50 361 
4 Gain or loss on revaluation of company transformations 0 0 

A III. Reserve funds and other funds created from profit 247 622 228 039 
A III. 1 Legal reserve fund 231 611 211 531 

2 Statutory and other funds 16 011 16 508 

A. IV. Profit (loss) for the previous years 605 793 -3 856 216 
IV. 1 Retained earnings for the previous years 605 851 224 342 

2 Accumulated loss of previous years -58 -4 080 558 

A. V. Profit (loss) for the year (+ / -) 279 304 401 589 

Current year Prior year
2008

B. LIABILITIES 2 078 423 2 580 750 

B. I. Provisions 191 025 257 794 
B. I. 1 Provisions created under special legislation 0 0

2 Provision for pensions and similar obligations 0 0 
3 Provision for corporate income tax 0 0 
4 Other provisions 191 025 257 794 

B. II. Long-term liabilities 198 408 564 882 
B. II. 1 Trade payables 0 0

2 Liabilities to group companies with majority control 198 408 564 882 
3 Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50% 0 0 
4 Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association 0 0 
5 Advances received 0 0 
6 Bonds payable 0 0 
7 Notes payable 0 0 
8 Unbilled deliveries 0 0 
9 Other liabilities 0 0 

10 Deferred tax liability 0 0 

B. III. Current liabilities 588 986 625 958 
B. III. 1 Trade payables 432 866 342 228 

2 Liabilities to group companies with majority control 0 0 
3 Liabilities to group companies with control of 20% - 50% 0 0 
4 Liabilities to partners, co-operative members and participants in association 0 0 
5 Liabilities to employees 28 187 32 412 
6 Liabilities arising from social security and health insurance 12 931 17 104 
7 Due to government – taxes and subsidies 5 616 6 189 
8 Advances received 41 134 80 996 
9 Bonds payable 0 0 

10 Unbilled deliveries 58 129 92 179 
11 Other liabilities 10 123 54 850 

B. IV. Bank loans and borrowings 1 100 004 1 132 116 
B. IV. 1 Long-term bank loans 0 0

2 Short-term bank loans 1 100 004 1 132 116 
3 Borrowings 0 0 

C. OTHER LIABILITIES - TEMPORARY ACCOUNTS OF LIABILITIES 26 265 23 397 

C. I. Accrued liabilities and deferred assets 26 265 23 397 
C. I. 1 Accruals 11 669 23 011 

2 Deferred income 14 596 386 
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Current year Prior year
2008

I. 1 Revenue from sale of goods 247 068 356 383 
A. 2 Cost of goods sold 267 977 336 583 

+ GROSS MARGIN (20 909) 19 800 

II. Production 2 664 256 3 761 832 
II. 1 Revenue from sale of finished products and services 2 601 112 3 744 746 

2 Change in inventory produced internally 40 905 (30 910) 
3 Own work capitalized 22 239 47 996 

B. Production related consumption 1 731 612 2 615 498 
B. 1 Consumption of material and energy 1 421 334 2 267 229 
B. 2 Services 310 278 348 269 

+ VALUE ADDED 911 735 1 166 134 

C. Personnel expenses 622 383 674 196 
C. 1 Wages and salaries 469 642 497 527 
C. 2 Bonuses to members of company or cooperation bodies 360 360 
C. 3 Social security and health insurance 141 791 165 293 
C. 4 Other social costs 10 590 11 016 

D. 1 Taxes and charges 3 791 4 863 
E. 1 Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible fixed assets 83 911 82 564 

III. Revenue from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials 33 871 100 719 
III. 1 Revenues from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets 26 025 85 760 

2 Revenue from sale of materials 7 846 14 959 
F. Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets and materials sold 30 888 87 422 
F. 1 Net book value of intangible and tangible fixed assets sold 23 378 74 121 
F. 2 Materials sold 7 510 13 301 
G. 1 Change in provisions and allowances relating to operations and in prepaid expenses (specific-purpose expenses) -158 228 69 050 

IV. 1 Other operating revenues 1 934 613 3 087 786 
H. 2 Other operating expenses 2 041 950 3 138 732 

V. 1 Transfer of operating revenues 0 0 
I. 2 Transfer of operating expenses 0 0

Current year Prior year
2008

* PROFIT OR LOSS ON OPERATING ACTIVITIES 255 524 297 812 

VI. 1 Revenue from sale of securities and interests 0 0
J. 2 Securities and interests sold 0 0 

VII. Income from financial investments 0 20 131 
VII. 1 Income from subsidiaries and associates 0 20 131 

2 Income from other long-term securities and interests 0 0 
3 Income from other financial investments 0 0 

VIII. 1 Income from short-term financial assets 0 19 
K. 2 Expenses related to financial assets 0 510 134 

IX. 1 Gain on revaluation of securities and derivatives 0 78 019 
L. 2 Loss on revaluation of securities and derivatives 0 42 445 
M. 1 Change in provisions and allowances relating to financial activities 0 -332 190 

X. 1 Interest income 69 838 65 533 
N. 2 Interest expense 26 716 55 811 

XI. 1 Other finance income 304 808 565 914 
O. 2 Other finance cost 331 472 359 725 

XII. 1 Transfer of finance income 0 0 
P. 2 Transfer of finance cost 0 0 

* PROFIT OR LOSS ON FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 16 458 93 691 

Q. Tax on profit or loss on ordinary activities 0 0 
Q. 1 - due 0 0 
Q. 2 - deferred 0 0 

** PROFIT OR LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVIES AFTER TAXATION 271 982 391 503 

XIII. 1 Extraordinary gains 9 241 17 196 
R. 2 Extraordinary losses 1 919 7 110 
S. 1 Tax on extraordinary profit or loss 0 0 
S. 1 - due 0 0 
S. 2 - deferred 0 0 

* EXTRAORDINARY PROFIT OR LOSS 7 322 10 086 

T. 1 Transfer of share of profit or loss to partners (+/-) 0 0 

*** PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR (+/-) 279 304 401 589 

**** PROFIT OR LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 279 304 401 589 
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Current year Prior year
2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Z. PROFIT OR LOSS ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION (+/-) 271 982 391 503

A. 1. Adjustments to reconcile profit or loss to net cash provided by or used in operating activities 100 101 (306 502)
A. 1. 1. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets and write-off of receivables 83 911 126 184
A. 1. 2. Change in allowances 91 458 (333 772)
A. 1. 3. Change in provisions (66 769) 70 630
A. 1. 4. Foreign exchange differences 37 270 22 209
A. 1. 5. (Gain)/Loss on disposal of fixed assets (2 647) (11 639)
A. 1. 6. Interest expense and interest income (43 122) (9 722
A. 1. 7. Other non-cash movements (e.g. revaluation at fair value to profit or loss, dividends received) 0 (170 392)

A * NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION,
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 372 083 85 001

A. 2. Change in non-cash components of working capital (222 784) (156 546)
A. 2. 1. Change in inventory (292 325) (172 486)
A. 2. 2. Change in trade receivables 126 349 (182 878)
A. 2. 3. Change in other receivables and in prepaid expenses and unbilled revenue 160 534 (54 187)
A. 2. 4. Change in trade payables (131 933) 96 839
A. 2. 5. Change in other payables, short-term loans and in accruals and deferred income (85 408) 156 166

A ** NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION,
INTEREST PAID AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS 149 300 (71 545)

A. 3. 1 Interest paid (23 788) (33 907)
A. 4. 1 Tax paid 0 0
A. 5. 1 Gains and losses on extraordinary items 0 0

A *** NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 125 512 (105 452)

Current year Prior year
2008

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

B. 1. 1 Purchase of fixed assets (281 592) 125 791
B. 2. 1 Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 26 025 85 760
B. 3. 1. Loans granted (529 937) (646 901)
B. 4. 1 Interest received 74 764 25 291
B. 5. 1 Dividends received 0 0

B *** NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (710 740) (410 059)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

C. 1. 1 Change in long-term liabilities and long-term, resp. short-tem, loans (398 586) 452 562

C. 2. 1. Effect of changes in basic capital on cash 0 0
C. 2. 2. Dividends or profit sharing paid 0 0
C. 2. 3. Effect of other changes in basic capital on cash 950 000 0

C *** NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 551 414 452 562

F. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (33 814) (62 949)
P. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 224 092 287 041
R. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 190 278 224 092



QUALIFIED EMPLOYEE AND TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT ARE KEY PRESUMPTION OF OUR SUCCESS

QUALIFIED 
EMPLOYEE
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1. DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY
AERO Vodochody a.s. (“the Company”) is a joint
stock company incorporated on 2 January 1991
in the Czech Republic. The Company’s registered 
office is located at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374,
250 70, Czech Republic and the business registration
number (IČ) is 00010545. The Company is involved 
in cooperation in production of helicopters 
and aircraft parts, foreign trade of military products,
development, production, repairs and modernization
of military training and combat jets, and other 
aircraft related work.

In 2009 certain changes were made to 
the Commercial Register entry pertaining 
to the basic capital of the Company (see Note 10).

Shareholders holding a 10% or greater interest 
in the Company’s basic capital are as follows:
TULAROSA a.s. 51,50 %
Salori Holding B.V. 48,50 %

The parent company is TULAROSA a.s. with 
its registered office located at Na Příkopě 583/15,
Praha 1, Czech Republic.

The Company is included in the consolidated group
of Penta Investments Limited with the registered 
office in Agias Fylaxeos & Pollygnostou, 212, 
C&I CENTER, P.C. 3803, Limassol, Cyprus.

The Company is the parent company of the AERO
Vodochody Group and the accompanying financial
statements have been prepared as separate financial
statements. Consolidated financial statements 
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) have been prepared by
the parent company. In accordance with the valid
Czech accounting legislation, the Company is
exempt from the obligation to prepare consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Czech GAAP,
however, the consolidated financial statements 
prepared by the parent company will be published 
in the Commercial Register’s Collection of Deeds.

1. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 40
thousand are recorded at their acquisition cost,
which consists of purchase price, freight, customs
duties and other related costs. 
Internally-developed tangible fixed assets 
are recorded at their accumulated cost, which 
consist of direct material, labor costs and production
overheads. Interest and other financial expenses 
incurred in the construction of tangible fixed assets
are also capitalized.

Tangible fixed assets acquired free of charge 
are valued at their replacement cost and are 
recorded with a corresponding credit to the ‘Other
capital funds account’ on the date of acquisition. 
The replacement cost of these assets is set 
on the basis of the cost known at the moment 
of the respective asset acquisition.

The costs of technical improvements are 
capitalized. Repairs and maintenance expenses 
are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated based on the acquisition
cost and the estimated useful life of the related
asset. The useful economic lives are as follows:

Years
Constructions 30 - 45
Machinery and equipment 10 - 30
Vehicles 8 - 20
Furniture and fixtures 4 - 15
Other tangibles 5 - 20

An allowance is created against tangible fixed 
assets if their value as identified by the stocktaking
is significantly lower than their carrying amount.

Members of the statutory bodies as at 31 December 2009 were as follows:
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Chair: Ing. Zdeněk Sýkora
Member: Ing. Petr Brychta
Member: Ondřej Benáček

SUPERVISORY BOARD
Chair: Mgr. Václav Štajner
Member: Bc. Martin Prachař
Member: Jan Borýsek

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying financial statements were prepared in accordance with the
Czech Act on Accounting and the related guidelines as applicable for 2009 and 2008.

Explanation Added for Translation into English
These financial statements are presented on the basis of accounting principles
and standards generally accepted in the Czech Republic. Certain accounting 
practices applied by the Company that conform with generally accepted 
accounting principles and standards in the Czech Republic may not conform 
with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing the 2009 
and 2008 financial statements are as follows:

A) INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their acquisition cost and related expenses.

Intangible fixed assets with a cost exceeding CZK 60 thousand are amortized over
their useful economic lives. Small intangible fixed assets (with a cost of less than
CZK 60 thousand) are expensed upon acquisition and carried only in a subsidiary ledger.

Internally-developed intangible fixed assets are recorded at their accumulated
cost, which consist of direct material, labor costs and production overheads.

Amortization
Amortization is calculated based on the acquisition cost and the estimated useful
life of the related asset. The useful economic lives are as follows:

Years 
Software 3
Patents, royalties and similar rights 15

An allowance is created against intangible fixed assets if their value as identified
by the stocktaking is significantly lower than their carrying amount.

2. FINANCIAL ASSETS
Short-term financial assets consist of liquid valuables, cash in hand and at bank.
Long-term financial assets consist in particular of ownership interests and shareholdings.

Interests and securities are valued at their acquisition cost, which includes the purchase price
and direct costs related to the acquisition, e.g. fees and commissions paid to agents and stock
exchanges. In respect of debt securities, interest income is recorded observing the matching
and accrual principles. Accrued interest income is included in the relevant securities account.

As at 31 December, ownership interests constituting dominant or significant influence 
are valued at acquisition cost. An allowance is created against intangible financial assets 
if their value is significantly lower than their carrying amount.

3. INVENTORY
Purchased inventory is stated at actual cost being determined using the weighted average 
method. Costs of purchased inventory include acquisition-related costs (freight, customs, 
commission, etc.).

Work-in-progress and semi-finished products are recorded at standard cost, which approximates
actual. The cost of inventory produced internally includes direct material and labor costs 
and production overhead costs. Production overhead costs include energy, repairs 
and maintenance, telecommunication and IT costs, depreciation and other production services
and materials and are allocated based on direct labor hours.

4. RECEIVABLES
Both long- and short-term receivables are carried at their realizable value after allowance 
for doubtful accounts. Additions to the allowance account are charged to income.

5. DERIVATIVES 
Derivatives are initially measured at cost. Derivatives are recorded in other short-term 
receivables or payables, as appropriate, in the accompanying balance sheet. Derivatives 
are classified as derivatives held for trading or hedging derivatives.

The latter are designated as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. In order to qualify 
for hedge accounting, the change in the fair value of a derivative or of its estimated cash flow
must offset, in whole or in part, the change in the fair value or cash flow arising from 
the hedged item. In addition, there must be formal documentation of the hedging relationship 
at inception and the Company must prove that the hedging relationship is highly effective. 
In all other cases, derivatives are recognized as held-for-trading.

Derivatives are revalued to fair value as at the balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value 
of derivatives held for trading are reported in income. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
designated as fair value hedges are also recognized in income, together with the change
in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk being hedged. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are taken to equity and reflected 
in the balance sheet through gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities. Any ineffective
portion of the hedge is reported in income.
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6. EQUITY
The basic capital of the Company is stated 
at the amount recorded in the Commercial Register
maintained in the Municipal Court. Any increase 
or decrease in the basic capital made pursuant 
to the decision of the General Meeting which 
was not entered in the Commercial Register 
as at the financial statements date is recorded
through changes in basic capital. Contributions 
in excess of basic capital are recorded as share 
premium. Other capital funds are created pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

In accordance with the Commercial Code, 
the Company creates a legal reserve fund from profit.

In the first year in which profit is generated, a joint-
stock company should allocate 20% of profit after
tax (however, not more than 10% of basic capital) 
to the legal reserve fund. In subsequent years, 
the legal reserve fund is allocated 5% of profit 
after tax until the fund reaches 20% of basic capital.
These funds can only be used to offset losses.

7. PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES
Long-term liabilities and current liabilities are 
carried at their nominal values. Amounts resulting
from the revaluation of financial derivatives 
at fair value are shown in other liabilities.

Short-term and long-term loans are recorded 
at their nominal values. Any portion of long-term
debt which is due within one year of the balance
sheet date is classified as short-term debt.

Contingent liabilities that are not recorded 
in the balance sheet because significant 
uncertainties exist with respect to the amount, 
title or timing of the expected outflow of benefits 
are described in Note 19.

8. FINANCIAL LEASES
The Company records leased assets by expensing
the lease payments and capitalizing the residual
value of the leased assets when the lease contract
expires and the purchase option is exercised. Lease
payments paid in advance are recorded as prepaid
expenses and amortized over the lease term.

Intangibles in progress as at 31 December 2009 
represent intangible assets purchased from subsidiary
Technometra Radotín and intangible asssets related to
development of a part of the wing for the C-Series 
aircraft for the Canadian producer Bombardier. Patents,
royalties and similar rights are amortized over their
useful lives as specified in the relevant contracts.
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the total value 
of small intangible fixed assets, which are not reflected

9. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Assets and liabilities whose acquisition or production costs were denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated into Czech crowns at the exchange rate 
prevailing as at the transaction date. On the balance sheet date monetary items
are adjusted to the exchange rates as published by the Czech National Bank 
as at 31 December. Realized and unrealized exchange rate gains and losses 
were charged or credited, as appropriate, to income for the year.

10. RECOGNITION OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 
Revenues and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, that is, they are 
recognized in the periods in which the actual flow of the related goods 
or services occurs, regardless of when the related monetary flow arises.

The Company recognizes as an expense any additions to provisions or allowances
against risks, losses or physical damage that are known as at the financial 
statements’ date.
Long-term contracts are accounted for according to the completed contract 
method (or as specified in the contract).

11. INCOME TAX
The corporate income tax expense is calculated based on the statutory tax rate
and book income before taxes, increased or decreased by the appropriate 
permanent and temporary differences 
(e.g. non-deductible provisions and allowances, entertainment expenses, 
differences between book and tax depreciation, etc.).

The deferred tax position reflects the net tax effects of temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for corporate income tax purposes, taking 
into consideration the period of realization.

12. SUBSIDIES
In 2009 and 2008, the Company received subsidies from the government 
of CZK 7,197 thousand and CZK 12,327 thousand, respectively which were 
accounted for as other operating revenues.

Received subsidies are recorded in separate accounts. This treatment enables 
the Company to closely monitor subsidies’ receipt and utilization.

13. EMISSION ALLOWANCES
Carbon emission allowances are recorded as intangible fixed assets, which are not
amortized and are valued at cost or replacement cost when acquired free-of-charge.

The “use of emission allowances” is recorded at the financial statements’ date
corresponding to the volume of accounting unit’s emissions in the calendar year.
The first free-of-charge acquisition is recorded in other liabilities and is recognized
into income at the time and in the amount corresponding to the usage of allowances.

4. FIXED ASSETS

B) INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (IN CZK THOUSANDS)

COST At beginning of year Additions Disposals Transfers At end of year
Software 186,295 - - 2,428 188,723
Patents, royalties and similar rights 49,955 - - - 49,955
Other intangibles 1,044 1,764 (2,194) - 614
Intangibles in progress - 94,183 - (2,428) 91,755
2009 Total 237,294 95,947 (2,194) - 331,047
2008 Total 232,324 9,816 (4,846) - 237,294

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION At beginning of year Amortization during year At end of year Net book value
Software (180,621) (5,997) (186,619) 2,104
Patents, royalties and similar rights (49,955) - (49,955) -
Other intangibles - - - 614
Intangibles in progress - - - 91,755
2009 Total (230,576) (5,997) (236,574) 94,473
2008 Total (225,340) (5,236) (230,576) 6,718

Value  Other Other Revenues from  Other
of emission operating operating sale of emission liabilities
allowances revenues expenses allowances

At beginning of year 1,044 - - - (1,044)
Free of charge allocation of allowances 1,764 - - - (1,764)
Emission allowances required to cover the level
of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2009 (1,380) 1,380 (1,380) - 1,380

Sale of allowances (814) - - 1,069 814
Total as at 31 December 2009 614 1,380 (1,380) 1,069 (614)

c) See below for the movements in the emission allowance account during 2008. In connection with the movements of the allowance account, the following
amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):

Value  Other Other Revenues from  Other
of emission operating operating sale of emission liabilities
allowances revenues expenses allowances

At beginning of year 1,721 - - - (1,721)
Free of charge allocation of allowances 3,790 - - - (3,790)
Emission allowances required to cover the level
of carbon dioxide emissions determined in 2008 (2,367) 2,367 (2,367) - 2,367

Return of allowances (2,100) - - - (2,100)
Total as at 31 December 2008 1,044 2,367 (2,367) - (1,044)

in the accompanying balance sheet, was CZK 5,294 thousand and CZK 5,292 thousand 
at acquisition cost, respectively. Intangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 216,928 thousand 
are fully amortized as at 31 December 2009.
In 2009, the Company received subsidies for intangible fixed assets of CZK 9,480 thousand.
Other intangible fixed assets represent carbon emission allowances (“allowances”). 
The Company was issued free of charge allowances constituting the right to emit 6,288 tones 
of gas emissions in 2009. These emission allowances were valued at their replacement 
cost totaling CZK 1,764 thousand. See below for the movements in the emission allowance 
account during 2009. In connection with the movements of the allowance account, the following
amounts were charged against or recognized into income (in CZK thousands):



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2009 AERO VODOCHODY A.S. 

52 53

notes to financial 
statements

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the total value 
of small tangible fixed assets, which are not 
reflected in the accompanying balance sheet, 
was CZK 597,482 thousand and CZK 726,150 thousand
at acquisition cost, respectively.

Tangible fixed assets at a cost of CZK 698,989 thousand
are fully depreciated as at 31 December 2009. 
The Company has adjusted the carrying amount 
of certain tangible assets for a diminution in value
through an allowance charged against income 
(see Note 7). Allowances relating to buildings were
established in the amount of 100% of their net book
value as the Company does not expect to use these
assets in the future, allowances relating to Ae270
aircraft were established in the amount of 100% 
and in 2009 reduced by the value arising from 
the concluded agreement on the aircraft sale.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, a part of the 
buildings with a cost of CZK 16,401 thousand and CZK
3,409 thousand respectively, and with a net book
value of CZK 7,184 thousand and CZK 1,510 thousand,
respectively, were located outside the Company’s
production plant (flats, accommodation facilities).

As at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 
the Company established an allowance in the
amount of CZK 1,100 thousand for the financial 
investment in Letov, a.s.

For the purpose of completing the development 
and production of the Ae270 aircraft, the Company
founded a joint venture IBIS Aerospace Ltd. together
with Aerospace Industrial Development Corporation,
Taiwan (AIDC) in 1997. Based on commercial 
failure of the program, the General Meeting 
of shareholders of IBIS Aerospace Ltd. held 

On 8 December 2005, the Company signed a general agreement for post-warranty
support of L-159 and L-39 aircraft (see Note 19) with the Ministry of Defence of the
Czech Republic pursuant to which the Company committed itself to hold a significant
portion of fixed assets (particularly land, production halls, airport and other assets
necessary for maintaining the ability to provide service repairs for the Army of the Czech
Republic). The acquisition cost of assets with limited disposal rights was CZK 424,899
thousand and CZK 417,581 thousand and their net book value was CZK 218,383 thousand
and CZK 214,922 thousand as at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, respectively.

On 22 October 2007, AERO Vodochody a.s. and Česká exportní banka, a.s., entered
into a contract for the establishment of the right of pledge securing the Company’s
immovable assets (buildings and land) with respect to the provided export loan (see
Note 14). As at 31 December 2009, the acquisition cost of assets pledged amounted
to CZK 213,692 thousand and the net book value amounted to CZK 109,809 thousand.
The acquisition cost of land was CZK 15,952 thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings
was CZK 197,740 thousand whereas their net book value amounted to CZK 93,857 thousand.

As at 31 December 2009, certain tangible fixed assets (office building and mainte-
nance storage, waste storage, exchanger station, hall no. 4, etc.) were no longer 
in service. These assets had an original cost of CZK 29,995 thousand and net book
value of CZK 10,130 thousand.

As at 1 January 2009, assets with an original cost of CZK 276,601 thousand and net
book value of CZK 222,571 thousand were used as a non-monetary contribution in
Letiště Vodochody a.s. (see Note 4c). The acquisition cost of land was CZK 179,759
thousand, the acquisition cost of buildings was CZK 96,842 thousand whereas
their net book value amounted to CZK 42,812 thousand.

on 1 November 2007 decided on the process of a voluntary winding-up of the company. 
The process of winding-up was completed as at 11 April 2008.

As at 31 December 2007, for the sake of prudence the Company established an allowance 
for the financial investment in IBIS Aerospace Ltd. of CZK 332,190 thousand, which represented
the difference between the gross book value of this investment and its estimated net realizable
value of CZK 3,740 thousand. On the basis of an agreement between the partners in the joint
venture, IBIS Aerospace Limited was terminated as at 11 April 2008. The Company received 
a share in the liquidation remainder totaling CZK 20,131 thousand, out of which USD 218 
thousand, i.e. CZK 3,740 thousand, in the form of a bank transfer and CZK 16,391 thousand 
were tangible fixed assets. The share in the liquidation remainder was classified as income 
from the financial investment. 

2. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (IN CZK THOUSANDS)

Summary of changes in long-term financial investments:
Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2007 Additions Disposals Revaluation 31/ 12/ 2008 Additions Disposals Revaluation 31/ 12/ 2009

Subsidiaries 448,347 - (336,127) - 112,220 414,218 - 9 526,447
Associates 1,100 - - - 1,100 - - - 1,100
Allowances (333,290) - 332,190 - (1,100) - - - (1,100)
Loans to subsidiaries
and associates 211,750 827,735 (208,737) 74,515 905,263 1,243,419 (686,349) (27,133) 1,435,200

1.TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (IN CZK THOUSANDS)

COST At beginning of year Additions Disposals Transfers At end of year

Land 204,656 - (179,759) - 24,897
Constructions 983,495 - (98,714) 11,530 896,311
Machinery and equipment 1,152,474 42 (35,514) 43,117 1,160,119
Transportation equipment 253,210 - (13,455) 1,545 241,300
Furniture and fixtures 3,959 - (62) - 3,897
Other tangibles 5,875 - - - 5,875
Tangibles in progress 24,542 151,642 (24,189) (56,192) 95,803
Advances for tangibles 180 46,991 (38,804) - 8,367
2009 Total 2,628,391 198,675 (390,497) - 2,436,569 
2008 Total 2,624,053 271,170 (266,832) - 2,628,391

At beginning Depreciation Cost of sales At end Net book
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION of year during year or liquidation Disposals Transfers of year Allowances value

Land - - - - - - - 24,897
Constructions (493,843) (24,694) - 55,910 - (462,627) (9,851) 423,833
Machinery and equipment (970,887) (38,188) (6,741) 35,514 (42) (980,344) - 179,775
Transportation equipment (36,197) (15,026) (144) 13,455 - (37,912) (164,639) 38,749
Furniture and fixtures (3,900) (6) - 62 - (3,844) - 53
Other tangibles (5,756) - - - - (5,756) - 119
Tangibles in progress - - - - - - - 95,803
Advances for tangibles - - - - - - (180) 8,187
2009 Total (1,510,583) (77,914) (49,689) 147,745 (42) (1,490,483) (174,670) 771,416 
2008 Total (1,560,164) (77,328) (62,190) 189,099 - (1,510,583) (207,977) 909,831
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Financial information about Technometra Radotín,
a.s., and Letiště Vodochody a.s. was obtained from
the companies’ standalone audited financial state-
ments as at 31 December 2009.

In 2009, the Company made financial investments 
in the form of the acquisition of Rotortech Aero
Composites Limited, with its registered office in 
the United Kingdom and the basic capital totaling
GBP 1,401 thousand, and the acquisition of Clarex
Investments a.s., with its registered office in 
the Slovak Republic and the basic capital totaling 
EUR 33 thousand. Aquistion price of these 

5. INVENTORY
Excess, obsolete and slow-moving inventory has
been written down to its estimated net realizable

7. ALLOWANCES
Allowances reflect a temporary diminution in the
value of assets (see Notes 4, 5 and 6).
Changes in the allowance accounts (in CZK thousands):

investments was CZK 190,600 thousand and CZK 1,047 thousand. The Company
acquired Rotortech Aero Composites from Penta Investments Limited i.e. 
the acquisition represented a transfer within the Penta group.

The aquistion prices were determined based on valuation reports. As at 1 January
2009, the Company increased the basic capital of Letiště Vodochody a.s. in the
form of a non-monetary contribution valued at CZK 1,857,800 thousand to a total
of CZK 1,859,800 thousand based on the decision dated 1 December 2008 and
owns 9,299 ordinary shares with a nominal value of CZK 200 thousand per share.
The Company is the sole shareholder of the above company. Non monetary 
contribution represented land and buildings in total net book value of 
CZK 222,571 thousand (see Note 4b). 

Financial information about Technometra Radotín, a.s.
was obtained from the company’s standalone audited
financial statements as at 31 December 2008.

Financial information about Letiště Vodochody a.s. was
obtained from the company’s standalone unaudited

financial statements as at 31 December 2008. The sole shareholder of Letiště 
Vodochody a.s. was AERO Vodochody a.s. which held 10 registered shares with 
a nominal value of CZK 200 thousand per share as at the financial statements’ date.

The Company provided loans to and received loans from subsidiaries and
associates (see Note 22).

value by an allowance account. The allowance is determined by management based on 
an inventory aging analysis and the analysis of its future usability (see Note 7).

6. RECEIVABLES
Allowances against outstanding receivables that are
considered doubtful were charged to income based
on their analysis in 2009 and 2008, respectively 
(see Note 7).
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, receivables
overdue for more than 180 days totaled CZK 7,952
thousand and CZK 5,612 thousand, respectively.
The Company wrote off irrecoverable receivables 

of CZK 1,118 thousand in 2008, due to cancellation of bankruptcy proceedings, unsatisfying 
the claims in bankruptcy proceedings, etc.
In 2009 and 2008, the Company sold receivables of CZK 1,902,974 thousand and CZK 3,034,027
thousand, respectively. The income from the sale of the receivables was CZK 1,897,538 thousand
and CZK 3,018,610 thousand in 2009 and 2008, respectively. Nominal values of these receivables
along with the income from the sale of the receivables were included in other operating 
expenses or other operating revenues, as appropriate, in the income statement.
In 2009 and 2008, unbilled revenue represents, in particular, accrued interest on the loan 
to related parties.
Long-term and short-term receivables from related parties (see Note 22).

Allowances as at 31/ 12/ 2009 Work-in-progress, Advances granted
against (in CZK thousands): Materials semi-finished products and goods for inventory
Ae270 295,853 110,934 5,053
L-159 334,050 78,219 0
L-39, L-59 414,069 7,163 3,154
Sikorsky Program 26,633 5,004 1,619
Not-assigned material 19,483 515 0
Other inventory 35,364 7,839 330
Total 1,125,452 209,674 10,156

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2009 WERE AS FOLLOWS (IN CZK THOUSANDS):

Technometra Letiště Rotortech Clarex 
Name Radotín, a.s. Letov, a.s. Vodochody a.s. Aero Investments a.s.
Registered office Prague 5 Prague 9 Odolena Voda United Kingdom Slovak Republic
Percentage of ownership 100 42,6 100 100 100
Total net assets 296,641 - 1,923,471 43,420 9,982
Equity 178,449 - 1,524,602 20,584 (1,480)
Basic capital and capital funds 219,426 - 1,859,800 41,747 878
Funds created from profit 5,862 - 17 - 88
Accumulated loss of previous years (106,974) - (311,528) (8,825) -
Gain/Loss for the current year 60,135 - (23,687) (12,339) (2,446)
Acquisition cost of share / interest 110,220 1,100 224,571 190,600 1,047
Revaluation - - - - 9
Nominal value of share / interest 219,426 - 1,859,800 41,747 878
Intrinsic value of share / interest 178,449 - 1,524,602 20,584 -

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 WERE AS FOLLOWS (IN CZK THOUSANDS):

Name Technometra Radotín, a.s. Letov, a.s. Letiště Vodochody a.s.
Registered office Prague 5 Prague 9 Odolena Voda
Percentage of ownership 100 42,6 100
Total net assets 135,111 - 2,010
Equity 118,315 - 1,901
Basic capital and capital funds 219,426 - 2,000
Funds created from profit 5,862 - -
Accumulated loss of previous years (92,264) - -
Loss for the current year (14,710) - (99)
Acquisition cost of share / interest 110,220 1,100 2,000
Nominal value of share / interest 219,426 - 2,000
Intrinsic value of share / interest 118,315 - 1,901

Decrease in allowances against inventory as at 31December 2009 compared to 31 December 2008 was mainly caused by decrease of inventory related 
to program Ae270.

Balance Balance Balance
as at as at as at

Allowances against: 31/ 12/ 2007 Additions Deductions 31/ 12/ 2008 Additions Deductions 31/ 12/ 2009
Tangible fixed assets 183,291 118,713 (94,027) 207,977 131 (33,438) 174,670
Long-term financial investments 333,290 - (332,190) 1,100 - - 1,100
Inventory 1,422,814 71,986 (106,311) 1,388,489 63,828 (117,191) 1,335,126
Advances granted for inventory 8,505 604 - 15,842 8,487 (14,173) 10,156
Receivables – legal 2,128 - - 2,128 145 - 2,273
Receivables – other 4,467 2,444 (1,722) 5,189 4,634 (3,882) 5,941

Legal allowances are created in compliance with the Act on Provisions and are tax deductible.
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Financial assets deposited in restricted accounts
represent a security for guarantees granted by the
banks (see Note 14).

8. SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS
As at 31 December, the Company had the following
restricted cash balances (in CZK thousands):

In 2009, the Company concluded an agreement on an overdraft facility of CZK
30,000 thousand with Komerční banka a.s. As at 31 December 2009, the overdraft
was not used.

9. OTHER ASSETS
Prepaid expenses include in particular prepaid 
insurance fees and overhead costs, which are 
charged to income for the year in which they were
incurred.

As at 31 December 2008, unbilled revenues 
included in particular an estimation related 
to a ceded receivable. Revenues are recognised 
to income for the year in which they were incurred.

Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at 
31/ 12/ 2007 Increase Decrease 31/ 12/ 2008 Increase Decrease 31/ 12/ 2009

Number of shares 5,899,681 - - 5,899,681 - (3,130,500) 2,769,181
Basic capital 5,014,089 - - 5,014,089 950,000 (4,080,500) 1,883,589
Share premium 450,000 - (450,000) - - - -
Other capital funds 28,720 - - 28,720 - - 28,720
Gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities (124,896) 74,535 - (50,361) 50,651 (7,891) (7,601)
Legal reserve fund 199,743 11,788 - 211,531 20,080 - 231,611
Other funds 16,508 - - 16,508 - (497) 16,011
Retained earnings 377 223,965 - 224,342 381,509 - 605,851
Accumulated loss (4,530,558) 450,000 - (4,080,558) 4,080,500 - (58)

2009 2008
Amount in foreign Amount in CZK Amount in foreign Amount in CZK

Bank Currency currency (in thousands) thousands currency (in thousands) thousands
Česká národní banka USD - - 1,323 25,588
Česká spořitelna, a.s. USD 87 1,606 287 5,551
Komerční banka, a.s. USD - - 700 13,542
Komerční banka, a.s. EUR 50 1,320 - -
Total - 2,926 - 44,681

Profit for 2007 235,753 Profit for 2008 401,589
Compensation of accumulated loss from share premium 450,000 Compensation of accumulated loss from share premium -
Compensation of accumulated loss from basic capital decrease - Compensation of accumulated loss from basic capital decrease 4,080,500
Allocation to legal reserve fund (11,788) Allocation to legal reserve fund (20,080)
Undistributed profits added to retained earnings 223,965 Undistributed profits added to retained earnings 381,509
Retained earnings for the previous years as at 31/ 12/ 2008 224,342 Retained earnings for the previous years as at 31/ 12/ 2009 605,851
Accumulated loss of previous years as at 31/ 12/ 2008 (4,080,558) Accumulated loss of previous as at 31/ 12/ 2009 (58)

used to settle the accumulated loss of previous years. The basic capital amount following 
the decrease, i.e. CZK 1,883,589 thousand, was entered in the Commercial Register on
22 December 2009.

The Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 April 2008 decided to compensate the accumulated
loss of previous years in the amount of CZK 450,000 thousand from share premium.
In 2008 gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities arose due to the revaluation of 
hedging derivatives only; in 2009 gain or loss on revaluation of assets and liabilities arose due
to the revaluation of the financial investment in Clarex Investments a.s. (see Note 4c) and 
the revaluation of derivatives (see Note 16).

The Annual General Meetings held on 13 August 2009, 27 November 2009, 17 April 2008 
and 19 August 2008, respectively approved the following profit distribution for 2008 and 2007 
and compensation of the accumulated loss of previous years (in CZK thousands):

The Annual General Meeting held on 18 September
2009 decided on the basic capital increase by CZK
950,000 thousand. The basic capital increase was
paid on 13 November 2009. The basic capital
amount following the increase, i. e. CZK 5,964,089
thousand was entered in the commercial register on
13 November 2009.

The General Meeting held on 27 November 2009 
decided to reduce the basic capital by CZK 4,080,500
thousand in order to settle accumulated loss of 
previous years. The basic capital decrease was
made through withdrawal of shares without charge.
The whole amount representing the decrease was

10. EQUITY
The basic capital of the Company comprises 968,356
ordinary registered shares in materialized form,
with a nominal value of CZK 1,000; 913,458 priority
registered shares in materialized form, with a nomi-
nal value of CZK 1,000; 887,366 registered shares in
materialized form, with a nominal value of CZK 2
and 1 priority registered share in materialized form,
with a nominal value of CZK 2.

Other capital funds consist of the fund balance after the financial restructuring made in 
previous years. Other funds from profit were created for an issue of employee shares 
(however this issue has been abandoned) and social fund.

The movements in the capital accounts during 2009 and 2008 were as follows
(in CZK thousands):
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Provisions for contract Ae270
The Company does not plan to produce a significant
quantity of Ae270 aircraft in the current version. 
Accordingly, in 2005 the management of the 
Company established a provision of CZK 45,557
thousand for fixed contracts and placed orders for
material to be purchased from third parties, which
will not be used. In 2009 and 2008, the original 
provision was reduced by the value of materials
used and cancelled orders by agreement with suppliers.

11. PROVISIONS
The movements in the provision accounts were as
follows (in CZK thousands):

12. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
As at 31 December, the Company had the following
other long-term payables (in CZK thousands):

Sikorsky guarantee repairs 
The Company established a provision in the amount of estimated costs for 
expected guarantee repairs related to the Sikorsky helicopter deliveries. 
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 this provision amounted to CZK 52 408 
thousand and CZK 74 661 thousand.

In 2008 a constructional defect affecting 193 Sikorsky helicopters was detected,
which was caused by a failure in the implementation of the helicopter design. 
For the sake of prudence, the Company established a provision for the elimination
of the constructional defect in the amount of CZK 88,893 thousand in 2008. 
In 2009 the provision was reduced to CZK 83,075 thousand.

On 7 January 2008, the Company and Salori Holding
B.V. concluded an agreement on the change in 
provisions on loan repayment. Accordingly, the 
companies agreed to replace the existing fixed 
interest rate by a fee based on the financial result 

of the Company before taxes and interest (EBIT). However, the maximum fee shall not exceed
the amount corresponding to 140% of the Czech National Bank discount rate times the unpaid
loan principal. In addition, the maturity of the loan was postponed to 31 January 2059.

In 2009 and 2008, the changes related to a long-term payable to Salori Holding B.V. were as 
follows (in CZK thousands):

The reduction of the payable in 2009 results from
exraordinary repayment of principal of CZK 350,000
thousand and a standard payment of interest of CZK
20,451 thousand. This repayment was approved by
Česká exportní banka, a.s.
The interest expense relating to the loan from 
Salori Holding B.V. for 2009 and 2008 was CZK 3,919
thousand and CZK 20,451 thousand, respectively. 
As at 27 March 2008, the Company and Salori 
Holding B.V. concluded a Settlement Agreement 
on waiving of interest of CZK 20,391 thousand 

for the period from 20 January 2007 to 6 March 2007. The Company recorded waived interest to
other finance income. 
On 30 November 2008, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded an agreement on waiving
a portion of the loan totaling CZK 150,000 thousand. The Company recorded waived part of loan
principal to other finance income. 
On 4 September 2007, the Company and Salori Holding B.V. concluded a payable subordination
agreement concerning the payable that the Company has to Salori Holding B.V. Pursuant to 
the agreement, the payable to Salori shall be subordinated to the payable recorded by AERO 
Vodochody a.s. with respect to the loans granted to AERO Vodochody a.s. by the bank (Česká 
exportní banka, a.s.). AERO Vodochody a.s. may redeem the subordinated payable only after 
it has settled the liability arising from the loan or with the written approval of the bank.

13. CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Company
had overdue current payables totaling CZK 51,454
thousand and CZK 64,709 thousand, respectively.
Unbilled deliveries include, in particular supplies of
material and services, which are charged to income
for the year in which they were incurred.

Advance payments received as at 31 December 2009 include in particular an advance received
from Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. for the production of aerospace components. Advance payments 
as at 31 December 2008 include in particular payments from Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation and
Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A. for the production of aerospace components. 
As at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008 other liabilities comprise in particular negative
fair values of outstanding hedging derivatives (see Note 16).
Payables to related parties (see Note 22).

Terms/Conditions 2009 2008
Payables to Salori Holding B.V. Maturity: 2059; Floating interest rate, up to 140% of the CNB discount rate 198,408 564,882
Total 198,408 564,882

Balance as at Balance as at Balance as at
Provisions 31/ 12/ 2007 Additions Deductions 31/ 12/ 2008 Additions Deductions 31/ 12/ 2009
Contractual charges and penalties - 5,200 - 5,200 - (5,200) -
Guarantee repairs L-159 and L-159T1 53,584 - (43,633) 9,951 1,448 (2,893) 8,506
Overhaul Tunis 3,402 - (2,300) 1,102 - (200) 902
Ae270 contract 10,870 - (5,435) 5,435 - (2,040) 3,395
Staff bonuses 26,940 35,887 (26,940) 35,887 47,343 (49,116) 34,114
Accrued vacation 11,299 63,719 (62,603) 12,415 61,102 (65,871) 7,646
Sikorsky guarantee repairs 58,076 105,478 - 163,554 3,541 (31,612) 135,483
Guarantee repairs Thailand 332 - (332) - - - -
Bank guarantee Egypt 22,661 1,589 - 24,250 - (24,250) -
Guarantee repairs Alenia - - - - 979 - 979
Business transaction Sikorsky - - - - 2,000 (2,000) -
Total 187,164 211,873 (141,243) 257,794 116,455 (183,224) 191,025

Balance as at Waiving of principal Loan Balance as at Payment of principal Loan Balance as at
31/ 12/ 2007 and interest interest 31/ 12/ 2008 and interest interest 31/ 12/ 2009

Loan 559,479 (150,000) - 409,479 (350,000) - 59,479
Interest 155,343 (20,391) 20,451 155,403 (20,451) 3,977 138,929
Total 714,822 (170,391) 20,451 564,882 (370,451) 3,977 198,408
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14. BANK LOANS AND BORROWINGS
As at 22 October 2008, the Company signed a loan
agreement with Česká exportní banka, a.s. with 
a total available credit limit of USD 60,000 thousand
(CZK 1,102,080 thousand). These funds can be used
only for financing of the Sikorsky Program. The loan
is secured by pledged receivables and rights resulting
from the general agreement with Sikorsky Aircraft
Corporation and by pledged immovable assets (see
Note 4b). The first drawing of the loan on 31 July
2009 was used for the payment of the loan from 2007.

As at 31 December 2009, the Company was provided
with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the drawn down element of the loan was 

USD 59,887 thousand (CZK 1,100,004 thousand) and USD 58,519 thousand 
(CZK 1,132,116 thousand), respectively. As at 31 December 2009 the loan maturity
is set on 31 January 2010 (on 27 January 2010 the maturity was extended until
31 July 2010 (see Note 26)); the loan bore a floating interest rate of 3M LIBOR 
+ margin. The total interest expense amounted to CZK 22,630 thousand and 
CZK 35,352 thousand in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Based on the loan agreement, the Company is obliged to fulfill following financial
covenants:

Pursuant to a Framework agreement on the 
provision of financial services entered into by and
between the Company and Komerční banka, a.s., 

on 23 September 2009, the Company was granted an overdraft facility of 
CZK 30,000 thousand (until 26 July 2010) to temporarily compensate for 
insufficient funds. The loan interest rate is O/N PRIBOR actual + 1.95% p.a. 
As at 31 December 2009, the Company did not use the overdraft facility.

15. OTHER LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008,
accruals include in particular outstanding interest
to Česká exportní banka and a payable from the
purchase of land in 2007.
As at 31 December 2009 deferred income includes
in particular revenue from sales related to the 
Sikorsky contract, which is recognized into income
for the year in which it was earned.

16. DERIVATIVES
The Company has concluded several hedging derivative contracts as at 31 December 2009 
and 2008. The derivatives were revalued at fair value, with positive or negative fair values of 
the hedging derivatives being included in other receivables and other payables, respectively, 
and in differences arising from the revaluation of assets and liabilities in the accompanying 
balance sheet. 

The following table summarizes face values and positive or negative values of outstanding 
hedging derivatives as at 31 December (in CZK thousands):

Bank Guarantee Terms Amount
Česká spořitelna, a.s. - performance bond non-specified 879 

- performance bond non-specified 727
Komerční banka, a.s. - performance bond 09/09 547

- performance bond 06/10 2,223
- performance bond non-specified 1,320

- bid bond 06/10 92
Total 5,788

As at 31 December 2008, the Company was provided
with the following bank guarantees (in CZK thousands):

Bank Guarantee Terms Amount
Česká národní banka - performing letter of guarantee 09/91 – 06/09 24,250

- performing letter of guarantee 09/91 – 06/09 1,242
Česká spořitelna, a.s. - surety non-specified 3,772

- surety non-specified 926
- surety non-specified 766

Komerční banka, a.s. - surety 03/09 27,084
Total 58,040

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Company secured received bank guarantees by cash deposited in restricted bank accounts of CZK 2,926 thousand 
and CZK 44,681 thousand, respectively (see Note 8).

2009 2008
Contractual/ Fair value Contractual/ Fair value

(in CZK thousands) Face Positive Negative Face Positive Negative
Interest rate swap contracts 734,720 - (7,891) - - -
Foreign exchange forwards 179,790 281 - 765,140 - (50,361)
Total derivatives held for hedging 914,510 281 (7,891) 765,140 - (50,361)

Hedging derivatives include derivatives that are designated as hedging instruments of assets and liabilities in a hedge of a foreign currency or interest rate risks
and that meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

Covenant Calculation Required value
Resulting price calculation Direct costs of S-76 production / S-76 selling price <= 91%
Total indebtedness Equity / total assets >= 15%
Return on operations Operating profit or loss / sale of finished products and services >= 3,5%
ROA Profit or loss for the period / total assets >= 0

As at 31 December 2009, the Company met all the above financial indicators.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2009 AERO VODOCHODY A.S. 

62 63

notes to financial
statements

The Company quantified deferred taxes as follows (in CZK thousands): 

17. INCOME TAXES 18. LEASES

The Company leases fixed assets, which are not 
recorded on the balance sheet (see Note 3i).
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, assets which are
being used by the Company under operating leases
consist of the following (in CZK thousands):

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company has a contractual relationship 
with mediators and records liabilities to them 
upon the completion of sales contracts. Pursuant 
to the sale contract, the Company undertakes 
to pay the mediator a part of the income realized.
It is not possible to determine the amount until 
contract completion.

Under the standard terms of its sales contracts, 
the Company has a responsibility to make spare
parts available for a period between 10-15 years
after the date of sale.

As at 8 December 2005, the Company concluded
with the Ministry of Defence of the Czech Republic 
a general agreement for after warranty support 
for L-159 and L-39 aircraft. According to this 
agreement, in the period until January 2029,
the Company is obliged to provide services, 
maintenance and spare parts for planes already
owned by the Army of the Czech Republic, and to
assist during their modernization. In cases of 
significant breaches of the contractual terms or 
in case of withdrawal from the contract, the Ministry
of Defence of the Czech Republic is entitled to claim

a penalty and potential additional compensation from the Company. Under the terms of this
agreement, a significant portion of its fixed assets may not be disposed of (see Note 4b).
The main production orders are realized on the basis of long-term contracts with suppliers.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the commitments arising from contracts concluded with 
suppliers amounted to CZK 849,645 thousand and CZK 1,168,455 thousand, respectively; 
of that the supplies for the project Sikorsky totaled CZK 617,722 thousand and CZK 1,104,574
thousand, respectively. These contracts, as a rule, include a provision stipulating the amount 
of compensation that the Company is obliged to pay if it fails to fulfil contractual obligations 
or if it withdraws from the contract. In addition, the suppliers do not accept responsibility for 
possible subsequent damage caused by an accident.

The Company has concluded a liability insurance for its own aviation activity, an accident
insurance of aircraft and an insurance for damage caused by faulty products. The Company 
has concluded a combined insurance limit in the amount of USD 250,000 thousand regarding 
the liability for product within the Sikorsky Program and of USD 75,000 thousand regarding
other liability emerging from aeronautical operations for one and all insured accidents arising
during the insurance period worldwide. The insurance covers the major risks emerging from 
the Company’s aeronautical operations.

In 1998, the Company together with GEO s.r.o. conducted an environmental audit, the result 
of which was, inter alia, a quantification of investments required for making the production 
ecofriendly and for remedy of environmental damage. The cost estimate totaled CZK 248,375
thousand. Based on the Contract for repayment of costs incurred in the settlement of 
environmental liabilities concluded between the Company and the National Property Fund 
of the Czech Republic on 12 August 1998, the National Property Fund (currently the Ministry 
of Finance of the Czech Republic) should cover those costs of the Company which are 
reasonably incurred up to CZK 2,691,926 thousand, which exceeds the estimate.

Description Terms Expense in 2009 Expense in 2008 Cost
Information technologies Until 2012 660 - 2,760
Copy machine Until 2009 170 170 858
Copy machine Until 2010 44 44 175

Assets which are being used by the Company under finance leases (i.e. the assets are transferred to the Company when the lease term expires) 
as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consist of the following (in CZK thousands):

Total Payments Payments Remaining 
Description Terms lease made as at payments as at Due within Due over

31/ 12/ 2009 31/ 12/ 2008 one year one year

Machinery Until 2013 55,314 14,962 2,368 9,772 30,580

2009 (in CZK thousands) 2008 (in CZK thousands)
Profit before taxes 279,304 401,589
Non-taxable revenues and non-deductible expenses, net,
related to write-off of share in joint-venture company IBIS Aerospace Ltd. 29,614 174,204

Non-taxable revenues (3,335) (29,350)
Difference between book and tax depreciation 75,945 75,980
Non-deductible expenses
Change in allowances (91,604) (1,582)
Change in provisions (66,769) 70,630
Other (e.g. entertainment expenses, shortages and losses) 69,814 105,699
Taxable profit 292,969 797,170
Tax loss carry-forward (292,969) (797,170)
Current income tax rate 20% 21%
Current tax expense - -

In accordance with the Income Taxes Act, the Company can carry forward tax losses generated since 2004 for up to five years. 
The remaining tax loss carry-forward from the years 2005 through 2006, the benefit of which has not been recognized in the accompanying 
financial statements, amounted to CZK 507,025 thousand as at 31 December 2009.

2009 2008
Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax 

Deferred tax items asset liability asset liability
Difference between net book value 
of fixed assets for accounting and tax purposes 23,226 - 8,862 -

Other temporary differences:
Allowance against receivables and advances for inventory 3,490 - 4,051 -
Allowance against inventory 253,674 - 263,813 -
Allowance against fixed assets 33,396 - 39,481 -
Provisions 36,295 - 50,400 -
Tax loss carryforward 96,346 - 159,735 -
Total 446,427 - 526,342 -
Net 446,427 - 526,342 -

The Company has not recorded a deferred tax asset on the basis that its future recovery is uncertain.
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20. REVENUES
The breakdown of revenues on ordinary activities is
as follows (in CZK thousands): 

In 2009, the revenues of the Company are 
concentrated primarily with three main customers
in the aviation industry, i.e. Sikorsky Aircraft 
Corporation, the Ministry of Defence of the Czech
Republic and Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A.

Subsidies received from the government for maintaining the Company’s 
operations were CZK 7,197 thousand and CZK 12,327 thousand in 2009 
and 2008, respectively.

22. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION
The majority shareholder of AERO Vodochody a.s. is
TULAROSA a.s. TULAROSA a.s. is owned by Penta
Investments Limited with its registered office in 
Limassol, Cyprus, which owns shares in other 
companies both in the Czech Republic and abroad,
and with which AERO Vodochody a.s. has no 
significant trading and other activities, except 
for Privatbanka, a.s., Salori Holding B.V. and Penta
Investments Limited.

The members of statutory and supervisory bodies,
directors and executive officers were granted no

loans, guarantees, advances or other benefits in 2009 and 2008 and they do not
hold any shares of the Company.
Benefits of certain members of the Company’s statutory bodies and management
consist of the use of automobiles for private purposes.

The Company sells products, goods and provides services to related parties 
in the ordinary course of business. Sales including interest income were 
CZK 107,457 thousand and CZK 66,093 thousand in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Pursuant to the agreement concluded in 2008, the Company assumed a guarantee
for liabilities and obligations of Technometra Radotín a.s. from finance lease 
contracts entered into with SG Equipment Finance concerning machinery 
up to the limit of CZK 120,000 thousand.

In 2009 and 2008 the Companz received interests 
from related partiesin amount of CZK 69 937 thousand
and CZK 60 508 thousand.
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 related parties were
provided no advances. 

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded a deposit in related party Privatbanka,
a.s. of CZK 68,153 thousand and CZK 50,380 thousand.
The Company purchases products and receives services from related parties in the ordinary
course of business. Purchases were CZK 127,191 thousand and CZK 95,828 thousand in 2009
and 2008, respectively.

Short-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

Long-term receivables from related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

Related party Terms/Interests Amount in EUR (in thousands) 2009 2008
Clarex Investments a.s. - loan in EUR 2015/6.10% 300 7,940 -

Short-term loans from related parties as at 31 December were as follows:

Related party Amount in thousands of foreign currency Due dates 2009 (in CZK thousands) 2008 (in CZK thousands)
Technometra Radotín, a.s. - trade receivables 2009 - 243
Technometra Radotín, a.s. - advance payment 2009 - -
Technometra Radotín, a.s. - lease guarantee - 328
Penta Investments Limited - accrued interest 2009 - 60,508
Penta Investments Limited - trade receivables 2009 - 805
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited 2009 - 88
Letiště Vodochody a.s. - trade receivables 2009 23,061 109
Total 23,061 62,081

Short-term receivables from related parties as at 31 December were as follows:

Related party Amount in thousands of foreign currency Due dates 2009 (in CZK thousands) 2008 (in CZK thousands)
Technometra Radotín, a.s. - loan 2010 50,000 1,000
Penta Investments Limited - loan in CZK 2010 789,400 350,000
Penta Investments Limited - loan in USD 29,650 2010 544,611 554,263
Clarex Investments a.s. - loan in EUR 85 2010 2,249 -
Letiště Vodochody a.s. - loan in CZK 2010 41,000 -
Total 1,427,260 905,263

Related party Due dates 2009 2008
Technometra Radotín, a.s. 2009 197,182 2,111
Rotortech Aero Composites Limited 2009 943 4,291
Fortuna Game, a.s. 2009 14 -
Penta Investments Limited o.z. 2009 283 -
Letiště Vodochody a.s. 2009 58 -
Total 198,480 6,402

As at 31 December 2009 short-term paybles to subsidiary Technometra Radotín was from transfer of long term assets and inventory realized in December 2009. 
Long-term payables to related parties as at 31 December were as follows (in CZK thousands):

Related party Due dates 2009 2008
Salori Holding B.V. 2059 198,408 564,882

Long-term payables to Salori Holding B.V. relate primarily to the payable from loan; the reduction of the payable results from partly repayment of principal of
CZK 350,000 thousand and interest of CZK 20,451 thousand (see Note 12).

2009 2008
Domestic Foreign Domestic Foreign

Aviation production 386,191 2,433,908 438,845 3,612,889
Non-aviation production 28,081 - 49,395 -
Total revenues 414,272 2,433,908 488,240 3,612,889

21. PERSONNEL AND RELATED EXPENSES
The breakdown of personnel expenses is as follows
(in CZK thousands):

The members and former members of statutory 
and supervisory bodies received total bonuses 
and other remuneration of CZK 360 thousand 
and CZK 360 thousand in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

In 2008, members of managerial bodies included both senior management 
and the middle management layer. In 2009, management bodies include senior
management only. Therefore, the information regarding members of managerial
bodies for 2009 and 2008 is not comparable.

2009 2008
Total Of which: members Total Of which: members

personnel of managerial bodies personnel of managerial bodies
Average number of employees 1,186 13 1,293 74
Wages and salaries 469,642 35,304 497,527 90,547
Social security and health insurance 139,641 4,718 163,007 22,123
Social cost 10,590 326 11,016 1,454
Other social security 2,150 - 2,286 -
Bonuses to statutory representatives 360 360 360 360
Total personnel expenses 622,383 40,708 674,196 114,244
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23. FUTURE OF THE COMPANY
The Company’s production portfolio consists 
of two main production programs. The Military 
Program comprises the project L-159 and 
overhauls of earlier types of aircraft. The Program
of the Aerospace Cooperation includes mainly 
the production of the S-76C+ helicopter for the 
American company Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation,
production of the wing centre section of the C-27J
Spartan aircraft for Alenia Aeronautica S.p.A., 
production of carriers for JAS-39 Gripen aircraft 
for Saab as well as other cooperation with leading
global aerospace producers (Latécoere, Sonaca,
Spirit Aerosystems, EADS and others).

The only one contractual partner of the production
program L-159 is the Ministry of Defence 
of the Czech Republic. As at 8 December 2005, 
the Company has concluded with the Ministry 
of Defence of the Czech Republic a general 
agreement for after warranty support for 
the aircraft within which the Company would 
provide services, maintenance and assist
in the modernization of the fleet and deliveries 

of spare parts. The contract was signed for a definite period until January 2029.
Since the beginning of the production of the L-159 aircraft, the Company sold 
a total of 72 planes to the one and only customer (i.e. to the Ministry of Defence 
of the Czech Republic). The Company has been concentrating on possible sales 
of the unused L-159 aircraft of the Army of the Czech Republic and on upgrading
of the specified number of aircraft to the L-159T1 advanced training aircraft for
the Army of the Czech Republic.

Until 2008, the production of helicopters for the Sikorsky Aircraft Corporation 
had a growing trend. Based on placed orders, the number of produced helicopters
decreased in 2009. In 2010, the Company will continue to produce the S-76C+ 
helicopter and will start the production of a modernized version S-76D. Based 
on the cooperation agreement with the Italian aircraft producer Alenia Aeronautica
S.p.A., the Company will supply 10 pieces of the centre section of the wing 
for the C-27J Spartan transportation aircraft in 2010. In 2010, the production 
of the JAS-39 Gripen carriers for Saab will increase to 7 pieces a month. 
In addition, the Company will continue to supply hinges and inner construction 
of doors for regional transportation jet planes Embraer 170 and Embraer 190
based on the contract with Latécoére Toulouse.

In addition, the Company is positive on the cooperation with the Belgian company
Sonaca on the development of a part of the wing for the C-Series aircraft for the
Canadian producer Bombardier, and in the additional job for the Sikorsky Aircraft
Corporation concerning production of the UH-60M Black Hawk helicopter cabin.

24. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Research and development costs amounted to CZK 39,266 thousand and CZK
59,016 thousand in 2009 and 2008, respectively, and were expensed as incurred.

25. SIGNIFICANT ITEMS OF INCOME STATEMENT
In 2009 and 2008, other operating revenues 
comprise in particular revenues from sale 
of receivables (see Note 6). 
In 2009 and 2008, other operating expenses 
include in particular the nominal value of sold 
receivables (see Note 6), shortages and damages
and insurance fees.

In 2009 and 2008, other finance income and expense consist mainly of foreign currency 
gains and losses.
In 2008, investments expenses include a write-off of the financial investment IBIS Aerospace 
Limited (see Note 4c).
Extraordinary gains for 2009 include a write-off of old accruals for which the suppliers failed 
to produce final invoices.

Statutory auditor’s fees as at 31 December were as follows:

26. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In January 2010, the following changes were 
made to the statutory bodies of the Company: 
the membership of Zdeněk Sýkora in the Board 
of Directors and the membership of Martin Prachař
in the Supervisory Board were terminated. With 
effect from 15 January and 21 January 2010, 

Ladislav Šimek was appointed a Board of Directors member and the Chair, respectively. 
Zdeněk Sýkora was appointed a member of the Supervisory Board with effect from 15 January 2010.
In March 2010, the Company made financial investments in the form of the acquisition 
of Clester Trading a.s., with its registered office in the Slovak Republic and the basic 
capital totaling EUR 33 thousand.
On 27 January 2010 the maturity of a loan agreement with Česká exportní banka, a.s. 
was extended until 31 July 2010 (see Note 14).

27. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (SEE APPENDIX 1)
The cash flow statement was prepared under the indirect method.

28. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SEE NOTE 10)

Services 2009 2008
Statutory audit 2,250 2,500
Total 2,250 2,500

Gains and losses on revaluation of securities and derivatives in 2008 included gains and losses realized from settlement of currency derivatives.
In 2009 these gains and losses are reported as other finance income and expense. 
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report on related 
parties
Report of the Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s.
according to provision of Section 66a of the Act No.
513/199, Coll. the Commercial Code, as amended
(further referred to as “Commercial Code”)

SECTION I. CONTROLLED AND CONTROLLING PARTY

CONTROLLED PARTY
AERO Vodochody a.s.
Seat at Odolena Voda, Dolínek, U Letiště 374, 
Postcode 250 70
Identification No.: 00010545
Registered in the Companies Register 
maintained by the Municipal Court
in Prague, Section B, File 449 
(further referred to as “Company”)

CONTROLLING PARTY
Penta Holding Limited
Seat at 44 Paphos, Griva Digeni,
Salamis House, 3rd floor, Postcode 8020, Cyprus Republic
Registration No.: HE 101 570

SECTION II. RELATED PARTIES
Related parties are represented by the Company and parties directly and indirectly
controlling, and companies controlled by the controlling party, i.e. from January 4,
2007 parties controlled by Penta Holding Limited.

SECTION III. DECISIVE PERIOD
This report was elaborated for the period from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009.

SECTION IV. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS CONCLUDED BY RELATED PARTIES
In the decisive period, the following contracts between related parties were signed:
for the period from January 1, 2009 to December 31, 2009

SECTION V. OTHER LEGAL 
ACTS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
No other legal acts are known to the Company 
carried out in the interest of the related parties.

SECTION VI. OTHER MEASURES BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES
No other measures were carried out in the interest of the related parties 
to the knowledge of the Company.

ODDÍL VII. ZÁVĚR
SECTION VII. CONCLUSION
The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. 
states that it proceeded with all due diligence of 
a manager to establish the circle of related parties
for the purpose of this report: by consulting 
the controlling parties, both in the period before 
and after the change in the owner of the Company,
regarding the circle of parties, which were 
controlled by these parties in the given period.

The Board of Directors of AERO Vodochody a.s. proclaims that all fulfillments, considerations
respectively, which were provided on the basis of the relations mentioned in Sections IV. – VI. 
of this report, were in a customary amount. This report was presented for review 
to the Supervisory Board and to the auditor, who will perform the audit of the financial 
statements as required by a special law.

In Odolena Voda, March 31, 2010
Ondřej Benáček
Member of the Board
AERO Vodochody a.s.

Petr Brychta
Member of the Board
AERO Vodochody a.s.

Attachement: Conducted contracts between related parties for the period from January 1, 2008
to December 31, 2008 for the period from January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008

Contract Date of Provided Gained
Party Name Signature Performance Performance Duration Detriment

Shortened Shortened
Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 1 to Loan Facility 6.2.2008 maturity maturity 1 year None

Agreement signed on 26. 6. 2007 for 1 year for 1 year

Penta Investments Limited Contract on provision of sublicenses to 27.2.2008 Pecuniary  Rights for Indefinite None
software and maintenance of software consideration SAP period

Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 2 to Loan Facility 25.6.2008 Prolongation Prolongation 1 year None
Agreement signed on 26. 6. 2007 of loan of loan

Amendment no. 3 to Loan Facility Increased limit Increased limit
Penta Investments Limited Agreement signed on 27. 6. 2007 21.4.2008 and shortened  and shortened 1 year None

maturity for 1 year maturity for 1 year
General agreement on electronic Electronic Electronic

Penta Investments Limited communications services and on sale  9.5.2008 communications communications 3 years None
of electronic communications devices services services

and its accessories – T Mobile

Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 4 to Loan Facility 25.6.2008 Prolongation Prolongation 1 year None
Agreement signed on 27. 6. 2007 of loan of loan

Penta Investments Limited, Opening of Cancellation of the Indefinite
TULAROSA a.s., Amendment no. 1 Insurance Contract 26.9.2008 mortgage sublimit to contract period None
Salori Holding B.V. no. 125006614 with EGAP and ČEB to bill on loan with ČEB

Pledge of bonds
Penta Investments Limited, to receivable Continuation
TULAROSA a.s., Agreement on mortgage for bonds 29.9.2008 of PENTA of contract on Indefinite None
Salori Holding B.V. Investments loan with ČEB period

limited to ČEB
Penta Investments Limited, Loan Facility Loan Facility
TULAROSA a.s., Loan Facility Agreement no. 21559 22.12.2008 Agreement Agreement 1 year None
Salori Holding B.V.

Salori Holding B.V. Agreement on the change of obligations 7.1.2008 Loan Facility Loan Facility 50 years None
regarding the receivable Agreement Agreement

Salori Holding B.V. Settlement agreement 27.3.2008 Remission of debt Remission of debt Nonrecurring None
Salori Holding B.V. Agreement on remission of the debt 30.11.2008 Remission of debt Remission of debt Nonrecurring None

Rotortech Aero Composites Limited Contracts on purchase 2008 Purchase price Goods Indefinite None
of goods delivery period

Party Contract Date of Provided Gained Duration Detriment
Name Signature Performance Performance

Penta Investments Limited Share purchase agreement 100% shares 2.7.2009 Company Company Nonrecuring None
of Rotortech Aero Composites Limited shares sale shares purchase

Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 5 to Loan Facility 25.6.2009 Prolongation Prolongation 30.1.2010 None
Agreement signed on 27.6.2007 of loan of loan

Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 3 to Loan Facility 25.6.2009 Prolongation Prolongation 30.1.2010 None
Agreement signed on 26.6.2007 of loan of loan

Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 4 to Loan Facility 13.11.2009 Increased Increased 30.1.2010 None
Agreement signed on 26.6.2007 limit limit

Penta Investments Limited Insurance contract no. 125007119 Praeexport loan
Tularosa a. s., Salori Holding B.V. between EGAP and ČEB 24.7.2009 - insurance 31.1.2010 None

Penta Investments Limited Praeexport loan
Tularosa a. s., Salori Holding B.V. Project support agreement 15.7.2009 - funding 31.1.2010 None

Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 1 to Loan Participarion

Tularosa a. s., Salori Holding B.V. Facility Agreement no . 21559 24.7.2009 - change – 31.1.2010 None
Calyon Bank

Penta Investments Limited Amendment no. 2 to Loan Participarion

Tularosa a. s., Salori Holding B.V. Facility Agreement no. 21559 29.10.2009 - change – 31.1.2010 None
Deutsche Bank

Penta Investments Limited Costs abandonment conected  26.10.2009 Service price Counselling Nonrecuring None
to PZL Swidnik aquisition services

Rotortech Aero Composites Limited Purchase contracts 2009 Purchase price Goods 1.7.2009 None
on goods delivery
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